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Since 1956, when Tldewater was founded and the
offshore energy, marrne lndustry was . born your Company has grown
and prospered by provrdrng its. customers safe and rellable services
that set the mdustry standard Havrng operated in over 60 countries,
Tidewater’s expenence encompasses nearly every’ marlne service related
to the oil serwce lndustry Today, your Company is. rn the mrdst of a
major fleet renewal program that will ensure its abrllty to mamtam its
industry leadersh|p posmon ‘

Tidewater pndes |tself on its outstanding safety record, sohd financial
base, strict adherence to- ,corporate governance- standards trans-
parency of f‘nancral results and commitment to creatlng value for its
shareholders. The" mgenwty of: Tidewater’s people, and. /Tdewaters
financial resources and mternatlonah expertise have ~caused the
Company to exce{and progress in varylng world economlc conditions,
and in an industry® noted by |t$> cycllcallty
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Looking back on my first full year as
Tidewater's CEO and President, | would char-
acterize it as a year of challenge and
change. The general challenges are all
around us: political, economic, industrial,
and social. The most specific challenge stems
from a domestic marketplace that seeming-
ly will not respond to industry or economic
fundamentals. The changes surrounding
us are both external and internal. Since
external change is a constant, it seems to
me that what is most important in this cor-
respondence to you, our shareholders, is a
review of the internal change at Tidewater
that is being effected, what it means to
date, and what we believe it will mean in
the future,

In the midst of these challenges and
change, | am reminded of a remodeling
project. Anyone who has ever remodeled or
restored a structure, however grand, can
understand that there are times in the exercise
that test not only the patience, and the
finances, but frequently the character of the
individuals who undertake the project. In
the exercise presently underway at Tidewater,
we are fortunate to have an excellent man-
agement team focused on common goals.
We also are fortunate that my two prede-
cessors have given us stewardship of a
company that is financially sound and flexible

in order to allow our team to view these
challenges and change as opportunities,
and to be able to meet them with creativity
and energy.

There are some guestions in the invest-
ment community relating to the value of a
support vessel company as an energy
equity investment. They generally relate
to Tidewater’s ability to grow earnings in
what is perceived to be a “commodity”
business. They also reflect a feeling that the
support vessel business has few barriers to
entry, and that the industry tends to have
too much capacity too much of the time.
They are valid questions. Our answers at
Tidewater center around the same theme—
that to achieve superior value and earnings
growth, we at Tidewater have to be consis-
tently focused on being better, Tidewater's
position as the higgest company in its busi-
ness will only be meaningful if the company
is the best in the business as well. Your
entire team at Tidewater has spent the last
year trying to do just that: to make a great
company better. Thus the reference to the
remodeling project. At nearly fifty years of
age, even great edifices can need renewing.
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The steps being taken at Tidewater today
are positioning it for the decades to come.

Our earnings of the past year, like those
in the rest of the oil service universe, were
down. There are a couple of points to make
about our financial performance. First, our
focus on being better becomes clear upon a
close examination of our recent earnings.
Profits from our international operations
have risen well in excess of 100% over the
last three years, which | think clearly under-
scores management's commitment 1o the
continuing expansion and enhancement of
the international vessel fleet. Our overseas
personnel have told us what our customers
need for us to better serve them, and man-
agement has responded by delivering new
and better equipment to serve those needs.
We intend to continue to do so in clear
recognition that only by anticipating and
responding to our customers’ needs can we
maintain our position as not only the
largest, but the best and most consistent
overseas service vessel operator. |

while it is clear that our international
operations provide the core of earnings for
Tidewater, we have by no means lost our
motivation to continue to see the Guif of
Mexico as an important part of the Company’s

operations. In the Gulf, we face a dilemma
that will soon confront us overseas: how to
strategically renew the fleet without adding
capacity to the industry or compromising
our pristine balance sheet.

We are the largest operator of support
vessels in the Gulf, yet much of our equipment
is small compared to the new equipment
being delivered, and it is also mature. As a
result, our management team has spent this
last year enhancing our domestic fleet by
delivering both newer and bigger vessels
into it. We also responded to the falling rig
count in the Gulif of Mexico by initiating an
innovative course of action. Rather than
work our older and smaller vessels at what-
ever price the market dictated, we decided
to pull the majority of our fleet out of active
service. The portion of the older fleet that
was kept active was marketed at rates that
were well above the cash break-even rates
of past downturns. The result of this policy is
that when the market improves, we will start
the upturn from a much higher rate level than
at the bottom of past poor markets.

On April 1, 2003, we were also fortunate
to have had the opportunity to acquire the
Gulf of Mexico vessel fleet, 27 units in all,
from ENSCOQ International. This $79 million
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acquisition is, to my mind, a terrific example
of your Company’s financial assets used to
further its quest for bigger and better. It was
important for Tidewater for a couple of reasons.
The first is that it gives us a re-entry into
the anchor handling market in the Gulf,
which is a very profitable niche in the mar-
ketplace in which Tidewater has not partic-
ipated for several years. It gives us the
immediate use of six high capacity stretched
vessels that defers our need to build similar
vessels for some years. The purchase also
provides for a preferred provider agreement
for Tidewater vessels to work with ENSCO
rigs. Finally, the acquisition provides us with
the opportunity to welcome many well gual-
ified maritime professionals into the
Tidewater family. This purchase is expected
to immediately add to Tidewater’s earnings.

In 2000, my predecessor, Bill O’Malley,
made the decision to embark on a newbuild
and enhancement program for our fleet.
Since then, we have delivered 60 newly con-
structed or acquired vessels, including
anchor handling vessels, platform supply
vessels and crewboats, into our fleet. These
newly acquired vessels have been very well
received by the market place and have met
our initial internal return on capital
employed goals.

| am very proud of these assets, which
| think represent our continuing commitment
to becoming better, but I'd like to point out
that our physical assets are only part of our
makeup. The most important part of the
Tidewater story continues to be our people—
our vessel crews, marketing and support per-
sonnel, world-wide managers and outstanding
financial management team. Our superior
workforce is our most valuable asset.

| inherited from my predecessor a com-
pany with the highest standards of safety in
our industry. This year we were able to
achieve and equal the lowest lost time acci-
dent frequency in our history: five accidents
where someone missed a day of work
thereafter. We are extremely proud of this
accomplishment, particularly considering that
Tidewater employees worked nearly 30 mil-
lion man hours in virtually every culture
throughout the world. Our employees deserve
an enormous amount of credit for achieving
this record, and it is my promise that your
Company will not deviate from its objective of
zero lost time accidents. Our goals of bigger
and better will only be meaningful if they
are achieved without injury to people and
to the environment.
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One of our Directors, Lester Pollack, will
be resigning for personal reasons from our
Board upon the conclusion of this year’s
annual meeting, and we are indebted to him
for his service. With an acute perception of
the workings of the financial markets, and
with his incisive advice on many of the
problems confronted by our Company, he
was instrumental in the formation of the
Company that is reporting to you today. We
are very grateful to him, and shall miss him
and his guidance very much.

In closing, | would also like to reiterate
the profound debt that our Company owes
to my predecessor, Bill O’Malley, for creating
the culture of safety, integrity, and sound
financial management around which our
present Tidewater has been built. From his
predecessor, John Laborde, Bill inherited a
strong and well-positioned company. Yet Bill
showed that it was possible to build
strength upon strength. He nurtured a new
generation of management at Tidewater
that shares his vision of profitability, integrity,
and transparency. Many of us at Tidewater
learned to be both better individuals and
better managers from Bill. We intend to let
neither him, nor you, our shareholders, down
in the assumption of our duties.

| also extend my gratitude to all of the
employees, shareholders and customers of
Tidewater for your continuing support of
the Company and its goals. | assure you that
| will continue to do all that | can to further
enhance the Company’s reputation as the
biggest and the best provider of marine
support services throughout the world, and
to continue to actively demonstrate to all
current and potential investors that their
trust is not misplaced.

Dean E. Taylor
Chief Executive Officer and President

May 31, 2003
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FISCAL YEAR 2003 HIGHLIGHTS TIDEWATER’S
STRENGTHS. While celebrating its 47th birth-
day and looking forward to its fast-approaching
soth anniversary, your Company is facing, and
meeting, many of the same challenges faced in
1956 when it founded the offshore energy
marine support service industry. The early chal-
lenges of selecting a new management team,
the need to enhance and expand the fleet and
the uncertainty of market conditions may
sound similar to the Company’s current issues.
Today, though, Tidewater is able to draw on its
historical success and financial strength in
addressing these current challenges.

With the mid-fiscal 2002 election of Dean
Taylor as only the third chief executive officer
in Company history, came the important task
of restructuring and realigning Tidewater’s
senior management group. His selections and
appointments from within the Company have
resulted in today’s team in which the top five
individuals collectively possess more than
100 years of industry experience. In fact, the
group collectively possesses more than 100
years of experience with Tidewater. This ability
to assemble a qualified and experienced
management team from within clearly demon-
strates the Company’s stability and depth of
talent. It also ensures that Tidewater’s history,
legacy of fiscal responsibility and ability to
deliver superior customer service in a safety

environment unparalleled in the oil service industry
will be sustained on an uninterrupted basis.
Tidewaters fleet expansion program
announced in January 2000, and subsequently
supplemented by the fleet replacement pro-
gram initiative announced in late 2001,
continued unabated through fiscal 2003. By
the end of fiscal 2003 the Company had
entered into newbuild or vessel purchase
agreements covering 81 vessels at a cost
slightly in excess of one billion dollars. At
no time in Tidewater’s past has such an
aggressive fleet improvement program been
undertaken. The delivery of 13 of these
vessels during fiscal 2003 brings the
total vessels added to the fleet under
these programs to 56, with the balance of
25 additional vessels under construction
due for delivery in fiscal 2004 and 2005.
The vessels, as delivered, have been met




with an enthusiastic response and today
account for approximately 30 percent of the
Company’s worldwide revenue base. As a key
component of this fleet improvement strategy,
over the last five years, Tidewater has
scrapped or otherwise disposed of 229 older,
less efficient vessels. Through the end of fiscal
2003, the Company has spent approximately
$856 million in fleet expansion yet main-
tains a financially sound debt to total cap-
italization ratio of only 9.3%, and the
Company has continued to pay quarterly div-
idends as it has done for the past 30 quarters.

During fiscal 2003, Tidewater's marine
operations participated in two distinctively
different worlds. Domestic operations, suffer-
ing from weak demand, vessel overcapacity
and an ageing fleet, saw supply vessel
utilization during the two-year period fall
from a peak near 70 percent to a year-end low
near 20 percent. Average day rates, while
held high by choice, still decreased from a
level near $6,500 per day at the beginning of
the year, to end the year at levels closer to

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

$6,000 per day. This unfortunate combination 1
of key economic factors resulted in the worst
domestic financial performance by the
Company in almost 15 years.
International operations during fiscal
2003 represented an entirely different story. 3
In excess of 8o percent of the Company’s total
worldwide revenues were generated interna-
tionally. The Company’s entire profitability is 4
attributable to operations outside of the United
States. The early 2000 fleet expansion pro-
gram, which placed an emphasis on high-end 5
ar larger vessels targeted for international
operations, certainly proved its inherent value
and potential during fiscal 2003.
Finally, fiscal 2003 ended on a high note
with the announcement of our April 1, 2003 7
acquisition of 27 vessels from ENSCO. That
acquisition, the ongoing belief that domestic
operations will improve at some future point, 8
and the continued success of vessels delivered
under the fleet expansion and improvement
programs all point to a future of continu- @
ing operational and financial success for
Tidewater. With the approach of its “golden
anniversary,” Tidewater is aggressively meeting
its challenges and moving forward.
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2003

Fiscal Years

2002 2001 2000 1999

Revenues $ 635823 729,029 616,679 574,815 968,992
Net Earnings $ 88,630 136,159 86,143 76,590 210,719
Net Cash from Operations $ 202,000 194,313 163,177 235,062 254,364
Capital Expenditures $ 269,620 317,907 302,793 57,362 48,283
Long - term Debt $ 139,000 54,000 0 0 0
Stockholders’ Equity $ 1,351,395 1,285,818 1,178,340 1,114,201 1,067,707
Per Share Data

Net Earnings $ 1.57 2.41 1.53 1.37 3.68

Cash Dividends $ 0.60 0.60 0.60 0.60 0.60

Market Price at Year-end 3 28.72 42.35 45,20 31.81 25.88
Weighted Average Common
Shares Qutstanding 56,413,856 56,054,797 55,741,624 55,546,832 | 57,189,946
Total Vessel Count
at Year End 545 555 571 618 685

(000’s omitted, except Per Share data and Vessel Count)
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INFORMATION

CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS
Tidewater Inc.

601 Poydras Street, Suite 1900
New Orleans, LA 70130-6040
504-568-1010 or 800-678-8433
www.tdw.com

FORM 10-K REPORT

Tidewater's 2003 Annual Report on Form 10-K may be obtaine
Company's investor Relations Department at corporate headquarters. Tidewater's SEC filings can also
be viewed online at the Company's website, www.tdw.com.

WEBSITE AND E-MAIL ALERTS

Information concerning the Company, including quarterly financial results and news releases,
is available on the Company's website at www.tdw.com. E-mail alerts about the Company's news
releases, SEC filings and presentations are available by registering at the Company's website.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

Requests for information concerning the Company should be directed to the Investor Relations
Department using the address or phone listed above. Requests for information can also be submitted
at the Company's website, www.tdw.com.

STOCKHOLDER ASSISTANCE

Information about stockholder accounts may be obtained by contacting the Transfer Agent and
Registrar for Tidewater's common stock, EquiServe Trust Company, N.A., P.0. Box 43010, Providence,
Rl 02940-3010, phone: 781-575-3170. General stockholder information is available on the EquiServe
web site, www.equiserve.com

DUPLICATE MAILINGS

If you receive duplicate mailings of shareholder materials, you can help eliminate the added expense
by requesting that only one copy be sent. To eliminate duplicate mailings, contact the Company's
Stock Transfer Agent and Registrar listed above.

STOCK EXCHANGE
Tidewater's common stock is traded on the New York and Pacific stock exchanges under the symbol TDW.

\,\\ p \ : -;>;;//,
‘_\~ T \\‘/ , ‘ | / _—— _ — e
Ee——— R

— T T S T
e ———— Y /
%“"\ — —

— \\\i/ // Y e &V%,,
$ "\_‘ \\ e ///%
- \%_/ ////V/
\\ //




Financial Report / Form 10-K



SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934 - FFor the Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2003

TRANSITION REPCRT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 - For the Transition Period From to

Commission file number 1-6311

TIDEWATER INC.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its Charter)

Delaware 72-0487776
(State or other jurisdiction of (I.R.S. Employer
incorporation or organization) Identification No.)
601 Poydras Street, New Orleans, Louisiana 70130
(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

Registrant’'s Telephone Number, including area code (504) 568-1010

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12{b) of the Act:

Title of each class Name of each exchange on which reqistered
Common Stock, par value $0.10 New York Stock Exchange, Pacific Stock Exchange
Preferred Stock Purchase Rights New York Stock Exchange, Pacific Stock Exchange

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act: None

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by
Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such
shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to the filing
requirements for the past 90 days. Yes X No

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not
contained herein, and will not be contained, to the best of registrant's knowledge, in definitive proxy or
information statements incorporated by reference in Part Iil of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this

Form 10-K.

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is an accelerated filer (as defined by Rule 12b-2 of the
Act). Yes X No




The aggregate market value of the voting common stock held by non-affiliates of the registrant as of
September 30, 2002, was approximately $1,497,384,583 based upon the last sales price reported for such
date. Excluded from the calculation of market value are 4,076,278 shares held by the Registrant's grantor
stock ownership trust.

56,639,777 shares of Tidewater Inc. common stock $0.10 par value per share were outstanding on
April 11, 2003. Excluded from the calculation of shares outstanding at April 11, 2003 are 3,939,150 shares
held by the Registrant's grantor stock ownership trust. Registrant has no other class of common stock
outstanding.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of the Proxy Statement for Registrant's 2003 Annual Meeting of Stockholders are
incorporated into Part Il of this report.
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Forward-looking Information and Cautionary Statement

In accordance with the safe harbor provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995,
the company notes that this Annual Report on Form 10-K and the information incorporated herein by
reference contain certain forward-looking statements which reflect the company’s current view with respect
to future events and financial performance. Any such forward-looking statements are subject to risks and
uncertainties and the company’s future results of operations could differ materially from historical results or
current expectations. Some of these risks are discussed in this report, and include, without limitation,
fluctuations in oil and gas prices; level of fleet additions by competitors and vessel overcapacity; changes in
capital spending by customers in the energy industry for exploration, development and production; changing
customer demands for different vessel specifications; acts of terrorism; unsetiled political conditions, war,
civil unrest and governmental actions, especially in higher risk countries of operations; foreign currency
fluctuations; and environmental and labor laws.

Forward-looking statements, which can generally be identified by the use of such terminoiogy as
“‘may,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “estimate,” “forecast,” “believe,” “think,” “could,” “will,” “continue,” “intend,”
“seek,” “plan,” “should,” “would” and similar expressions contained in this report, are predictions and not
guarantees of future performance or events. Any forward-looking statements are based on current
industry, financial or economic information, which the company has assessed but which by its nature is
dynamic and subject to rapid and possibly abrupt changes. The company’s actual results could differ
materially from those stated or implied by such forward-looking statements due to risks and uncertainties
associated with our business. The forward-looking statements should be considered in the context of the
risk factors listed above and discussed elsewhere in this Form 10-K. Investors and prospective investors
are cautioned not to place undue reliance on such forward-looking statements. Management disclaims
any obligation to update or revise the forward-looking statements contained bherein to reflect new
information, future events or developments.

PART [

[TEMS 1 and 2. BUSINESS AND PROPERTIES

General

Tidewater Inc. (the "company”), @ Delaware corporation, provides offshore supply vessels and marine
support services to the offshore energy industry through the operation of the world’s largest fleet of offshore
marine service vessels. The company's worldwide headquarters and principal executive offices are located
at 601 Poydras Street, New Orleans, Louisiana 70130, and its telephone number is (504) 568-1010. The
company was incorporated in 1956. Unless otherwise required by the context, the term "company” as used
herein refers to Tidewater Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries.

With a fleet of over 545 vessels, the company operates (either through its consolidated entities or
joint-ventures in which it participates), and has a ieading market share, in most of the world's significant oil
and gas exploration and production markets and provides services supporting all phases of offshore
exploration, development and production, including: towing of and anchor handling of mobile drilling rigs and
equipment; transporting supplies and personnel necessary to sustain drilling, workover and production
activities; assisting in offshore construction activities; and a variety of specialized services including pipe
laying, cable laying and 3-D seismic work.

Availabiiity of Reports

The company’s Internet website address is hitp:/www.tdw.com. The company makes available free
of charge, on or through its website, its annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q and
current reports on Form 8-K and any amendments to those reports, as soon as reasonably practicable after
they are electronically filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Information appearing on the
company’s website is not part of any report fited with the Securities and Exchange Commission.
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Recent Developments

On April 1, 2003, the company paid $79 million in cash to ENSCO International Incorporated to
purchase its 27-vessel Gulf of Mexico-based marine fleet. The cash sale was funded by a newly-placed
$100 miflion term loan agreement with a group of banks that expires on July 31, 2004. The ioan bears
interest, at the company’s option, at prime or Federal Funds rates plus .5% or Eurodollar rates plus margin
of .85%. The mix of vessels the company acquired consists of five anchor handling towing supply vessels,
six stretched 220-foot platform supply vessels and 16 supply vessels. In conjunction with this acquisition, it
was also agreed that, for a period of two years and subject to satisfactory performance, the company will
provide to ENSCO all of its discretionary vessel requirements in the Gulf of Mexico. The day rates to be
charged under the arrangement are based upon predetermined pricing criteria. The acquisition enhances
the competitive posture of the company in providing anchor handling and towing-supply services in the Gulf
of Mexico and better positions the company for an upturn in the domestic market.

For the past three fiscal years, the company has engaged in an aggressive deepwater new-build
vessel construction and deepwater vessel acquisition program. These efforts have facilitated the
company’s entrance into the deepwater markets of the world. During this three year period, the company
committed $729 million for the purchase and construction of 33 large deepwater vessels, of which
$662.5 million has been expended through March 31, 2003. Twenty-six of these vessels, of which 11
were acquired and 15 were newly-built, have been delivered, crewed and are working under contracts of
varied terms. The company also initiated a fleet replacement program for its supply boats in tandem with
its deepwater vessel program and committed $149.8 million, of which $99.4 million has been expended
through March 31, 2003, for the construction of 13 supply vessels. The first three replacement fleet
vessels were delivered to the market during fiscal 2003.  Scheduled delivery of the remaining 10
replacement vessels will begin in April 2003 with the final vessel delivered in May 2004. The six stretched
platform supply vessels acquired from ENSCO on April 1, 2003 discussed above helped accelerate the
company’s domestic fleet replacement program.

The company is also engaged in a crewboat expansion program that began in fiscal 2002 by
acquiring 11 existing crewboats and committing toc the construction of 14 additional crewboats of which
six have been delivered to the market through fiscal 2003. The company committed $102.3 million for the
acquisition and construction of these vessels, of which $72.2 million has been expended through
March 31, 2003. Scheduled delivery of the remaining eight vessels under construction is expected to run
from April 2003 through October 2003. Eighteen of the vessels are large traditional crewboats while four
are state-of-the-art, fast, crew/supply vessels. The remaining three vessels are smaller water jet craft.
The acquisition of these vessels has allowed the company to meet its customers’ demand for crewboats -
a fast-growing segment of the offshore marine service market, and expand the company’s market share
in the U.S. Guif of Mexico. Crewboats typically maintain higher utilization rates and have lower
maintenance costs compared to supply vesseis. In addition, the crewboat market has fewer competitors
as compared to the supply vessel market.

All three expansion programs were initiated with the intent to replace the company’s core fleet with
fewer, larger and more efficient vessels while strengthening the company’s leading presence in all major
oit and gas producing regions of the world. In order to avoid potential overcapacity in our markets that
could be created through the addition of the vessels discussed above, the company sold and/or scrapped
121 vessels between April 2000 and March 2003.

The company has been financing all of its vessel commitment programs from current cash balances,
operating cash flow and its revolving credit facility. At March 31, 2003, the company had 25 vessels under
construction with a total capital commitment of $360.8 million, of which the company has already expended
$214.1 million. A full discussion of each event including capital commitments and scheduled delivery dates
is disclosed in the “Vessel Acquisition and Construction Programs” and “Vessel Dispositions” section of
ltem 7 and Notes 8 and 10 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Areas of Operation

The company's fleet is deployed in the major offshore oil and gas areas of the world. The principal
areas of the company’s operations include the U.S. Gulf of Mexico, the North Sea, the Persian Gulf, and




areas offshore Australia, Brazil, Egypt, India, Indonesia, Malaysia, Mexico, Trinidad, Venezuela and West
Africa. The company conducts its operations through wholly-owned subsidiaries and joint ventures,
Information concerning revenues and operating profit derived from domestic and international marine
operations and domestic and international marine identifiable assets for each of the fiscal years ended
March 31 are summarized below:

(In thousands)
2003 2002 2001
Revenues.
Vessel operations:
United States $ 103,368 203,648 197,660
International 521,187 511,713 386,271
Other marine operations 11,268 13,668 32,748
$ 635823 729,029 616,679
Operating profit:
Vessel operations:
United States $  (15,380) 56,128 26,812
Intemational 138,945 145,412 65,241
Other marine operations 4,168 4,042 7137
Gain on sales of assets 6,162 6,380 22,750
$ 133,895 211,962 121,940
Identifiable assets:
United States $ 478,093 370,836 293,070
Intemational 1,281,031 1,229,802 1,063,709
Total marine assets $ 1,759,124 1,600,638 1,356,779

Please refer to Item 7 of this report and Note 11 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for
further discussion of revenues, operating profit and identifiable assets.

Marine Vessel Fleet

The company's vessels regularly and routinely move from one operating area to another, often to
and from offshore operating areas of different continents. Tables comparing the average size of the
company's marine fleet by class and geographic distribution for the last three fiscal years are included in
ltem 7 of this report. The company discloses its vessel statistical information, such as utilization and
average day rates, by vessel class. Listed below are the company’s five vessel classes along with a
description of the type of vessels categorized in each class and the services the respective vessels
perform.

Deepwater Vessels. The company’s newest class of vessel is its deepwater vessel class, often
referred to as North Sea-type vessels. Included in this class are large platform supply vessels and large,
high-horsepower (generally greater than 10,000 horsepower) anchor handling towing supply vessels. This
vessel class is chartered to customers for use in transporting supplies and equipment from shore bases to
deepwater and intermediate offshore drilling rigs, platforms and other installations. Platform supply vessels,
which have large cargo handling capabilities, serve drilling and production facilities and support offshore
construction and maintenance work. The anchor handling towing supply vessels are equipped for and are
capable of towing drilling rigs and other marine equipment, as well as setting anchors for positioning and
mooring drilling rigs.

Towing Supply and Supply Vessels. This is the company’s largest fleet class by number of vessels.
Included in this class are anchor handling towing supply vessels and supply vessels with average
horsepower below 10,000 BHP, and platform supply vessels that are generally less than 220 feet. The
respective vessels in this class perform the same functions and services as their deepwater vessel class
counterparts except they are chartered to customers for use in the intermediate and shallow waters.

Crewboats and Utility Vessels. Crewboats and utility vessels are chartered to customers for use in
transporting personnel and small quantities of supplies from shore bases to offshaore drilling rigs, platforms
and other installations.




Offshore Tugs. Offshore tugs tow floating drilling rigs; dock tankers; tow barges; assist pipe laying,
cable laying and construction barges; and are used in a variety of other commercial towing operations,
including towing barges carrying a variety of bulk cargoes and containerized cargo.

Other Vessels. The company's vessels also include inshore tugs; inshore barges; offshore barges;
and production, line-handling and various other special purpose vessels. Inshore tugs, which are operated
principally within inland waters, tow drilling rigs to and from their locations, and tow barges carrying
equipment and materials for use principally in inland waters for driling and production operations. Barges
are either used in conjunction with company tugs or are chartered to others.

Revenue Contribution of Main Classes of Vessels

Revenues from vessel operations were derived from the main classes of vessels in the following
percentages:

Year Ended March 31,

2003 2002

Deepwater vessels . 13.3%
Towing-supply/supply . 65.0%
9.5%

Crew/utility . 11.0%
1.2%

Shipyard Operations

Quality Shipyards, LLC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the company, operates two shipyards in
Houma, Louisiana, which construct, modify and repair vessels. While the shipyard performs some work
for outside customers, the majority of its business relates to the construction, repair and modification of
the company’s vessels. Quality Shipyards, LLC recently constructed four of the company’s deepwater
platform supply vessels. Three of the vessels were delivered in calendar year 2002 and the final vessel
was delivered in March 2003. Quality Shipyards, LLC is presently constructing for the company three
220-foot next generation supply vessels which are scheduled for delivery between April 2003 and
December 2003.

Insurance

The operation of any marine vessel involves an inherent risk of catastrophic marine disaster, adverse
weather conditions, mechanical failure, collisions, and property losses to the vessel and business
interruption due to political action in countries other than the United States. Any such event may result in a
reduction in revenues or increased costs. The company's vessels are insured for their estimated market
value against damage or loss, including war, terrorism acts, and pollution risks. The company also carries
workers' compensation, maritime employer's liability, directors and officers liability, general liability (including
third party pollution) and other insurance customary in the industry.

The continued threat of terrorist activity and other acts of war or hostility following the terrorist attacks
on the United States on September 11, 2001, the United States-led military response to counter terrorism
and the current United States military actions in Afghanistan and lraq have significantly increased the risk of
political, economic and social instability in some of the geographic areas in which the company operates. It
is possible that further acts of terrorism may be directed against the United States domestically or abroad
and such acts of terrorism could be directed against properties and personnel of U.S.-owned companies
such as ours. The resulting economic, political and social uncertainties, including the potential for terrorist
acts and war, have caused the premiums charged for our insurance coverage to increase. After the events
of September 11, 2001, the company’s insurance underwriters imposed higher premiums for war risk
coverage on the company’s vessels. The company currently maintains war risk coverage on its entire fleet.
To date, the company has not experienced any property losses as a result of terrorism, political instability or
war:

Management believes that the company’s insurance coverage is adequate. The company has not
experienced a loss in excess of insurance policy limits; however, there is no assurance that the company’s
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liability coverage will be adequate to cover all potential claims that may arise nor can the company claim
that it will be able to maintain adequate insurance in the future at rates considered reasonable especially
with the current level of uncertainty in the market.

Industry Conditions, Competition and Customers

The company’s operations are materially dependent upon the levels of activity in offshore oil and
natural gas exploration, development and production throughout the world. Such activity levels are affected
by the trends in worldwide crude oil and natural gas prices that are ultimately influenced by the supply and
demand relationship for the natural resources. A discussion of current market conditions appears under
“General Market Conditions and Results of Operations” in ltem 7 of this report.

The principal competitive factors for the offshore vessel service industry are suitability and availability
of equipment, price and quality of service. The company has numerous competitors in virtually all areas in
which it operates and competition is intense. During the current downturn in the Gulf of Mexico market, the
company has made a strategic decision to attempt to maintain high day rates at the expense of lower
utilization. The lower utilization of our Guif cf Mexico supply vessel fleet has resulted in the company “cold
stacking” approximately 70% of its domestic supply vessel fleet. The majority of the company’s competitors
in the Gulf of Mexico have elected to charge lower day rates and maintain a much higher utilization tevel for
their vessels. Certain customers of the company own and operate vessels to service certain of their
offshore activities.

The company’s diverse, mobile asset base and geographic distribution allow it to respond to changes
in market conditions and provide a broad range of vessel services to its customers throughout the world.
Management believes that the company has a significant competitive advantage because of the size,
diversity and geographic distribution of its vessel fleet, the company's financial condition and economies of
scale.

The company’s principal customers are major oil and natural gas exploration, development and
production companies, foreign government-owned or controlled organizations and companies that explore
and produce oil and natural gas, and companies that provide other services to the offshore energy industry.
Over the last several years, consolidation of exploration, development and production companies has
occurred which has, and will continue to have, an impact on the company’s global operations. Although one
customer accounted for 13% and the five largest customers accounted for approximately 36% of its
revenues during the year ended March 31, 2003, the company does not consider its operations dependent
on any single customer.

Regulatory Matters

The company's vessels are subject to various statutes and regulations governing their operation and
maintenance. Under the citizenship provisions of the Merchant Marine Act of 1920 and the Shipping Act,
1916, the company could not engage in U.S. coastwise trade if more than 25% of the company's
outstanding stock was owned by non-U.S. citizens. The company has a duat stock certificate system to
protect against non-U.S. citizens from owning more than 25% of its common stock. In addition, the
company’s charter permits the company certain remedies with respect to any transfer or purported transfer
of shares of the company's common stock that would result in the ownership by non-U.S. citizens of more
than 24% of its common stock. Based on information supplied tc the company by its transfer agent,
appreximately 4.3% of the company's outstanding common stock was owned by non-U.S. citizens as of
March 31, 2003.

The company's vessels are subject to various statutes and regulations governing their operation. The
faws of the United States provide that once a vessel is registered under a flag other than the United States,
it cannot thereafter engage in U.S. coastwise trade. Therefore, the company's non-U.S. flag vessels must
continue to be operated abroad, and if the company was not able to secure charters abroad for them, and
work would otherwise have been available for them in the United States, its operations would be adversely
affected. Of the total 545 vessels owned or operated by the company at March 31, 2003, 305 were
registered under flags other than the United States and 240 were registered under the U.S. flag.

7-



All of the company's offshore vessels are subject to international safety and classification standards.
U.S. flag towing supply and supply vessels are required to undergo periodic inspections and to be recertified
under drydock examination at least twice every five years. Vessels registered under flags other than the
United States are subject to similar regulations as governed by the laws of the applicable jurisdictions.

Seasonality

The company’s vessel fleet generally has its highest utilization rates in the warmer temperature
months when the weather is more favorable for offshore exploration, development and construction work.
However, business volume for the company is more dependent on oil and natural gas prices and the
global supply and demand conditions for the company's services than any seasonal variation.

Environmental Compliance

During the ordinary course of business the company's operations are subject to a wide variety of
environmental laws and regulations. The company attempts to comply in all material respects with these
laws and regulations in order to avoid costly accidents and related environmental damage. Compliance with
existing governmental regulations that have been enacted or adopted regulating the discharge of materials
into the environment, or otherwise relating to the protection of the environment, has not had, nor is expected
to have, a material effect on the company. The company is proactive in establishing policies and operating
procedures for safeguarding the environment agdinst any environmentally hazardous material ‘aboard its -
vessels and at shore base locations. Whenever possible, hazardous materials are maintained or
transferred in confined areas to ensure containment if accidents occur. In addition, the company has
established operating policies that are intended to increase awareness of actions that may harm the
environment.

Employees

As of March 31, 2003, the company had approximately 6,950 employees worldwide. The company
considers relations with its employees to be satisfactory. The company is not a party to any union contract
in the United States but through several subsidiaries is a party to union agreements covering local nationals
in several countries other than the United States. For the past few years, the company has been the target
of a union organizing campaign for the U.S. Gulf of Mexico employees by maritime labor unions. These
union efforts are still ongoing; however, union organizing activity has recently abated. if the Guif employees
were to unionize, the company’s flexibility in managing industry changes in the domestic market could be
adversely affected.

Business Risk Factors

The company operates in a business environment that has many risks. Listed below are some of the
more critical risk factors that affect the company and the offshore marine service industry and should be
considered when evaluating any forward-looking statement. The effect of any one risk factor or a
combination of several risk factors could materially affect the company’s results of operations and financial
condition and the accuracy of any forward-looking statement made in this Form 10-K.

Oil and Gas Prices Are Highly Volatife. Commodity prices for crude oil and natural gas are highly
volatile. Prices are exiremely sensitive to the supply/demand relationship for the respective natural
resources. High demand for crude oil and natural gas and/or low inventory levels for the resources as well
as any perceptions about future supply interruptions can cause commodity prices for crude oil and natural
gas to rise, while generally, low demand for natural resources and/or increases in crude oil and natural gas
supplies cause commodity prices for the respective naturai resources to decrease.

Factors that affect the supply of crude oil and natural gas inciude but are not limited to the foliowing:
the Organization of Petroleum Exporting Countries’ (OPEC) ability to control crude o#t production levels and
pricing, as well as, the level of production by non-OPEC countries; political and economic uncertainties;
advances in exploration and development technology; worldwide demand for natural resources; and
governmental restrictions placed on exploration and production of natural resources.




Changes in the Level of Capital Spending by Our Customers. The company’s principal customers are

major oil and natural gas exploration, development and production companies. The company’s results of
operations are highly dependent on the level of capital spending by the energy industry. The energy
industry’s level of capital spending is substantially related to the prevailing commodity price of natural gas
and crude oil. During periods of low commodity prices, the company’s customers generally reduce their
capital spending budgets for offshore drilling, exploration and development.

The Offshore Marine Service Indusiry is Highly Competitive. The company operates in a highly
competitive environment. Competitive factors include price and quality of service by vessel operators and
the quality and availability of vessels. Decreases in the level of offshore drilling and development activity by
the energy industry generally negatively affect the demand for the company’s vessels thereby exerting
downward pressure on day rates. Extended periods of low vessel demand and/or low day rates will reduce
the company’s revenues. Also, excess marine service capacity exerts downward pressure on day rates.
Excess capacity can occur when newly constructed vessels enter the market and when vessels are
mobilized between market areas. While the company has committed to the construction of several vessels,
it has also sold and/cr scrapped a significant number of vessels over the last few years. A discussion about
the company’s new vessel constructicn programs appears in the “Vessel Acquisition and Construction
Programs” section of ltem 7.

Failure to Atfract and Retain Key Management and Technical Personnel. The company’s success
depends upon the continued service of its executive officers and other key management and technical
personnel, particularly the company’s area managers and fleet personnel, and our ability to attract, retain,
and motivate highly qualified personnel. The loss of the services of a number of the company’s executive
officers, area managers, fleet personnel or other key employees, or our ability to recruit replacements for
such personnel or to otherwise attract, retain and motivate highly qualified personnel could harm the
company. The company currently does not carry key employee life insurance payable to the company with
respect to any of its management employees.

Risks Associated with Operating Internationally. For the fiscal years ended March 31, 2003, 2002
and 2001, 82%, 70%, and 63%, respectively, of the company’s total revenues were generated by
international operations. The company’s international marine vessel operations are vulnerable to the usual
risks inherent in doing business in countries other than the United States. Such risks include political and
economic instability, possible vessel seizures or nationalization of assets and other governmental actions,
the ability to recruit and retain management of overseas operations, currency fluctuations and revaluations,
and import/export restrictions; all of which are beyond the control of the company.

The continued threat of terrorist activity and other acts of war or hostility following the terrorist attacks
on the United States on September 11, 2001, the United States-led military response to counter terrorism
and the current United States military actions in Afghanistan and Iraq have significantly increased the risk of
political, economic and social instability in some of the geographic areas in which the company operates. [t
is possible that further acts of terrorism may be directed against the United States domestically or abroad
and such acts of terrorism could be directed against properties and personnel of U.S.-owned companies
such as ours. To date, the company has not experienced any property losses or material adverse effects on
its resulis of operations and financial condition as a result of terrorism, political instability or war.

in addition to the foregoing general risks inherent with operating internationally, the company currently
bears specific risks associated with its offshore operations in the Middie East, Southeast Asia, Venezuela
and Nigeria. The potential for economic, political and social instability has been exacerbated in the Middle
East by the U.S. war with Irag and the continuing military presence in Afghanistan. Although terrorism and
war developments have not adversely affected the company’s operations in the Middle East, the company,
like other American companies engaged in business in the region, could be subject to the interruption of its
operations, or other adverse developments. At this time, it is not possible to assess at what time in the
future political and social conditions in this region will return to normal.

Political and social unrest continues to be present in Indonesia. Much of this turmoil can be traced to

separatist groups opposing Indonesian governmental rule and also to religious turmoil and regional reaction
to the United States military and political response to the terrorist attacks on the United States on
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September 11, 2001. Although this reaction has not been destabilizing to the company, there continues to
be a higher than normal level of unrest throughout the region.

in early December 2002, oil production in Venezuela was interrupted by a general strike led by the
workers of the government-owned oil company in Venezuela (PDVSA). The debilitating national strike
lasted for two months and ended in early February 2003. The company’s vessel operations in Venezuela
were impacted by the two-month long strike. In December 2002 the company had 11 vessels contracted
with PDVSA. The majority of the vessels ceased operations during strike, but continued to earn revenue

on a per day basis as stipulated in the charter hire agreements or as agreed to by PDVSA
representatives.

Violence in Nigeria since mid-March 2003 has significantly and adversely affected Nigeria's oil
production. Several exploration and production company’s operational facilities near Warri, Nigeria have
been evacuated and shut down as a result of the civil unrest. Nigerian militants have taken over and
threaten to destroy installations of oil multinationals in reprisal for attacks by the Nigerian military. The
political unrest mainly affects our inshore Nigerian operations where smaller vessels with low day rates are
chartered to customers. The company’s vessels that operated in the Warri area have come off hire due to
the unrest; but these same vessels were immediately chartered to cther customers with work sites located
in areas of Nigeria that are not affected by the civil unrest. To date, the company’s results of operations in
Nigeria have not been adversely affected by the political unrest, but the situation in Nigeria continues to be
unstable.

At present, the company believes the risks of operating internationally to be within acceptable limits
and, in view of the mobile nature of the company's principal revenue producing assets, does not consider
them to constitute a factor materially adverse to the conduct of its international marine vessel operations as
a whole.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The company is not a party to any litigation that, in the opinion of management, is likely to have a
material adverse effect on the company’s financial position or results of operations.

[TEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TC A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

There were no matters submitted to a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of fiscai 2003.

[TEM 4A. EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

Name Age Position
Dean E. Taylor.........cc......... 54 Chief Executive Officer since March 2002. President and member

of the Board of Directors since October 2001. Executive Vice
President from 2000 to 2001. Senior Vice President from 1998 to
2000.

Cliffe F. Laborde .................. 51 Executive Vice President since 2000. Senior Vice President from
1992 to 2000. General Counsel since 1992.

Stephen W. Dick.................. 53  Executive Vice President since December 2001. Senior Vice
President from 1999 to 2001. Vice President from 1990 to 1999.

J. Keith Lousteau................ 55 Chief Financial Officer since 2000. Executive Vice President since
2003. Senior Vice President from 2000 to 2003. Vice President
from 1987 to 2000. Treasurer since 1987.

Joseph M. Bennett............... 47  Vice President and Principal Accounting Officer since 2000.
Corporate Controller since 1990.
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There are no family relationships between the directors or executive officers of the company. The
company's officers are elected annually by the Board of Directors and serve for one-year terms or until their
successors are elected.

PART i

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANT'S COMMON STOCK AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS

The company's common stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange and the Pacific Stock
Exchange under the symbol TDW. At March 31, 2003, there were approximately 1,716 record holders of
the company's common stock, based upon the record holder list maintained by the company's stock
transfer agent. The following table sets forth the high and low closing sale prices of the company's
common stock as reported on the New York Stock Exchange Composite Tape and the amount of cash
dividends per share declared on Tidewater common stock for the periods indicated.

Fiscal Year Quarter High Low Dividend

2003 First $ 4570 $ 3260 $ .15
Second 3361 23.38 A5
Third 33.72 23.59 15
Fourth 32.25 27.40 15

2002 First $ 51.23 $ 37.20 $ .15
Second 39.55 2413 .15
Third 35.10 25.01 15
Fourth 43.40 30.10 15

For information regarding shares of common stock authorized for issuance under the company’s
equity compensation plans see item 12 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management.

fTEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table sets forth a summary of selected financial data for each of the last five fiscal
years. This information should be read in conjunction with "Management's Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and the Consolidated Financial Statements of the
company included in this report.

Years Ended March 31
(In thousands, except ratio and per share amounts)
2003 2002 2001 (2) 2000 (2) 1999 (2)
Revenues:
Vessel revenues $ 624,555 715,361 583,931 538,517 911,048
Other marine revenues 11,268 13,668 32,748 36,298 57,944
$ 635,823 729,029 616,679 574,815 968,992
Net eamings $ 88,630 136,159 86,143 76,590 210,719
Eamings per common share (1) $ 157 2.44 1.53 1.37 3.68
Total assets $ 1,849,578 1,669,370 1,505,492 1,432,336 1,394,458
Long-term debt $ 139,000 54,000 — — —
Working capital $ 141225 152,891 205,000 328,856 198,532
Current ratio 2.95 3.07 3.45 5.39 3.4
Cash dividends declared per
common share $ 60 .60 .60 .60 .60

1) All per share amounts were computed on a diluted basis.

(2) During fiscal years 2001, 2000 and 1999, the company amortized goodwill in accordance with Accounting Principles Board
Opinion No. 17. The company ceased amortizing goodwill effective fiscal 2002 in accordance with Statement of Financial
Accounting Standard No. 142, Goodwill amortization expense for fiscal years 2001, 2000 and 1999 was $9.2 million or $.11 per
share after tax for all three fiscal years. A discussion about goodwill appears in Item 7 and Note 1 of Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Overview

The company provides services and equipment to the global offshore energy industry through the
operation of a diversified fleet of marine service vessels. Revenues, net earnings and cash flows from
operations are dependent upon the activity level of the vessel fleet that is ultimately dependent upon oit and
natural gas prices that, in turn, are determined by the supply/demand relationship for oil and naturai gas.
The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the Selected Financial Data and the
Consolidated Financial Statements and related disclosures.

Forward-looking Information and Cautionary Statement

In accordance with the safe harbor provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995,
the company notes that this Annual Report on Form 10-K and the information incorporated herein by
reference contain certain forward-fooking statements which reflect the company’s current view with respect
to future events and financial performance. Any such forward-looking statements are subject to risks and
uncertainties and the company’s future results of operations could differ materially from historical results or
current expectations. Some of these risks are discussed in this report, and include, without limitation,
fluctuations in oil and gas prices; level of fleet additions by competitors and vessel overcapacity; changes in
capital spending by customers in the energy industry for exploration, development and production; changing
customer demands for different vessel specifications; acts of terrorism; unsettled political conditions, war,
civil unrest and governmental actions, especially in higher risk countries of operations; foreign currency
fluctuations; and environmental and labor laws.

Forward-looking statements, which can generally be identified by the use of such terminology as
“‘may,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “estimate,” “forecast,” “believe,” “think,” “could,” “will,” “continue,” “intend,”
“seek,” “plan,” “should,” “would” and similar expressions contained in this report, are predictions and not
guarantees of future performance or events. Any forward-looking statements are based on current
industry, financial or economic information, which the company has assessed but which by its nature is
dynamic and subject to rapid and possibly abrupt changes. The company’s actual results could differ
materially from those stated or implied by such forward-looking statements due to risks and uncertainties
associated with our business. The forward-looking statements should be considered in the context of the
risk factors listed above and discussed elsewhere in this Form 10-K. Investors and prospective investors
are cautioned not to place undue reliance on such forward-looking statements. Management disclaims
any obligation to update or revise the forward-looking statements contained herein to reflect new

information, future events or developments.

" ”

Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting standards generally accepted
in the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect both the recorded
values of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the revenues recognized and
expenses incurred during the reporting period. The company’s estimates and assumptions affect its
recognition of deferred expenses, bad debts, income taxes, the carrying value of its long-lived assets and
goodwill, and its provision for certain contingencies. The company evaluates the reasonableness of these
estimates and assumptions continually based on a combination of historical information and other
information that comes to its attention that may vary its outlook for the future. Actual resulis may differ from
these estimates under different assumptions.

Management suggests that the company’s Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, as described
in Note 1 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, be read in conjunction with this Management's
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations. The company believes the
critical accounting policies that most impact the company’s consolidated financial statements are described
below.
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Revenue Recognition. The company's primary source of revenue is derived from time charter

contracts of its vessels on a rate per day of service basis. These time charter contracts are generally either
on a term basis (average three months to two years) or on a “spot” basis. The base rate of hire for a term
contract is generally a fixed rate, provided, however, that term contracts often include escalation clauses io
recover specific additicnal costs. A spot contract is a shori-term agreement to provide offshore marine
services to a customer for a specific short-term job. Spot contract terms generally range from one day to
one week. Marine vessel revenues are recognized cn a daily basis throughout the contract period.

Receivables. In the normal course of business, the company extends credit to its customers on a
short-term basis. The company’s principal customers are major oil and natural gas exploration,
development and production companies. Although credit risks associated with our customers are
considered minimal, the company routinely reviews its accounts receivable balances and makes adequate
provisions for doubtful accounts.

The company self-insures potential hull damage and personal injury claims that may arise in the
normal course of business. The company is exposed to insurance risks related to the company's
reinsurance contracts with various insurance entities. The reinsurance recoverable amount can vary
depending on the size of a loss. The exact amount of the reinsurance reccverable is not known until all
losses are settled. The company estimates the reinsurance recoverable amount it expects to receive and
also estimates losses for claims that have occurred but have not been reported or not fully developed. The
company also monitors its reinsurance recoverable balances regularly for possible reinsurance exposure
and makes adequate provisions for doubftful reinsurance receivables. It is the company’s opinion that its
accounts and reinsurance receivables have no impairment other than that for which provisions have been
made.

Goodwill. The company tests goodwill impairment annually at a reporting unit level, as required,
using carrying amounts as of December 31. The company considers its reporting units to be its domestic
and international operations. The implied fair value of the reporting unit is determined by discounting the
projected future operating cash flows for the remaining average useful life of the assets within the reporting
units by the company’s related cost of capital. Impairment is deemed to exist if the implied fair value of the
reporting unit is less than the respective book value of the reporting unit, and in such case, an impairment
loss would be recognized equal to the difference. There are many assumptions and estimates underlying
the determination of the implied fair value of each reporting unit, such as, future expected utilization and
average day rates for the vessels, vessel additions and atirition, operating expenses and {ax rates.
Although the company believes its assumptions and estimates are reasonable, deviations from the
assumptions and estimates could produce a materially different resuit.

The company performed its annual impairment test as of December 31, 2002, and the test
determined there was no goodwill impairment. At March 31, 2003, the company’s goodwill balance
represented 18% of total assets and 24% of stockholders’ equity. Interim testing will be performed when
events occur or circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of goodwill may be impaired. Examples of
events or circumstances that might give rise to interim goodwill impairment testing include significant
adverse industry or economic changes, significant business interruption due to political unrest or terrorism,
unanticipated competition that has the potential to dramatically reduce the company’s earning potential,
legal issues, or the loss of key personnel.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets. The company reviews long-lived assets for impairment whenever
events occur or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of assets may not be
recoverable. In such evaluation, the estimated future undiscounted cash flows generated by an asset,
based upon the company’s reasonable estimate of the remaining useful life of the asset, are compared with
the amount recorded for the asset to determine if a write-down may be required. The company estimates
cash flow based upon historical data adjusted for the company’s best estimate of future market performance
that is based on industry trends. If impairment exists, the carrying value of the long-lived asset is reduced to
the estimated fair value of the asset, based upon its estimated future discounted cash flows. Although the
company believes its assumptions and estimates are reasonable, deviations from the assumptions and
estimates could produce a materially different resuit.
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Income Taxes. The company determines its effective tax rate by estimating its permanent differences
resulting from differing freatment of items for tax and accounting purposes. The company is periodically
audited by taxing authorities in the United States and by the respective tax agencies in the countries in
which we operate internationally. The tax audits generally include questions regarding the calculation of
taxable income. Audit adjustments affecting permanent differences could have an impact on the company’s
effective tax rate.

The carrying value of the company’s net deferred tax assets assumes that the company will be able to

generate sufficient future taxable income in certain tax jurisdictions to utilize such deferred tax assets, based
on estimates and assumptions. If these estimates and related assumptions change in the future, the
company may be required to record additional valuation allowances against its deferred tax assets resuiting
in additional income tax expense in the company's consoclidated statement of operations. Management
evaluates the realizability of the deferred tax assets quarterly and assesses the need for additional valuation
allowances quarterly. While the company has considered future taxable income and ongoing prudent and
feasible tax planning strategies in assessing the need for the valuation allowance, in the event the company
were to determine that it would be able to realize its deferred tax assets in the future in excess of its net
recorded amount, an adjustment to the deferred tax asset would increase income in the period such
determination was made. Should the company determine that it would not be able to realize all or part of its
net deferred tax asset in the future, an adjustment to the deferred tax asset would be charged to income in
the period such determination was made.

Drydocking Costs. The company expenses maintenance and repair costs as incurred during the
asset’s original estimated useful life (its original depreciable life). Major repair costs incurred after the
original depreciable life that also has the effect of extending the useful life of the asset are capitalized and
amortized over 30 months. Major vessel modifications are capitalized and amortized over the remaining life
of the equipment. The company schedules vessel drydockings when it is anticipated that the work can be
performed. The company’s net earnings can fluctuate quarter to quarter due to the timing of scheduled
drydockings.

Vessel Acquisition and Construction Programs

On April 1, 2003, the company paid $79 million in cash to ENSCO International Incorporated to
purchase its 27-vessel Gulf of Mexico-based marine fleet. The cash sale was funded by a newly-placed
$100 million term loan agreement with a group of banks that expires on July 31, 2004. The loan bears
interest, at the company’s option, at prime or Federal Funds rates plus .5% or Eurodollar rates plus margin
of .85%. The mix of vessels the company acquired consists of five anchor handling towing supply vessels,
six stretched 220-foot platform supply vessels and 16 supply vessels. In conjunction with this acquisition, it
was also agreed that, for a period of two years and subject to satisfactory performance, the company will
provide to ENSCO all of its discretionary vessel requirements in the Gulf of Mexico. The day rates to be
charged under the arrangement are based upon predetermined pricing criteria. The acquisition enhances
the competitive posture of the company in providing anchor handling and towing-supply services in the Gulf
of Mexico and better positions the company for an upturn in the domestic market.

On January 10, 2001 the company entered into agreements with three shipyards for the
construction of seven large platform supply and five large anchor handling towing supply vessels. All of
which are capable of working in most deepwater markets of the world. The total estimated cost for the
vessels is approximately $344.2 million, which includes shipyard commitments and other incidental costs
such as spare parts, management and supervision, and ouffitting costs. The new-build program was
initiated in order to better serve the needs of the company’s customers in the deepwater markets of the
world. Four of the platform supply vessels contracts were awarded to the company’s shipyard, Quality
Shipyards, LLC, while the remaining eight vessels are being constructed at two shipyards in Far East
Asia.

As of March 31, 2003, six of the seven large platform supply vessels have been delivered to the
market for an approximate total cost of $145.7 million. Quality Shipyards, LLC delivered the first vessel to
the market during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2002 and the remaining three throughout fiscal 2003. All
four platform supply vessels constructed at Quality Shipyards, LLC were built to full Jones Act
compliance. A shipyard in Singapore is still constructing one platform supply vessel. The Singapore
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shipyard delivered two vessels during the third quarter of fiscal 2003 and is expected to deliver the last
vessel in April 2003. As of March 31, 2003, $17 million has been expended on the remaining platform
supply vessel of the total estimated $17.4 million cost.

The five large anchor handling towing supply vessels under contract at a shipyard in Far East Asia
are still under construction. Scheduled deliveries for the five vessels have been delayed. The company
expects the first vessel {o be delivered to the market in jate calendar year 2003 while the remaining four
vessels are expected to be delivered throughout calendar year 2004. The company has fixed cost contracts
supported by performance bonds with the shipyard and does not anticipate any cost overruns related to
these vessels. As of March 31, 2003, $122.2 million has been expended on these five vessels of the total
estimated $181.1 million of commitments.

The company is also committed to the construction of one large, North Sea-type platform supply
vessel (which is being constructed in a Brazilian shipyard) and 10 next generation supply vessels, ranging
in size from 205-foot to 220-foct, for approximately $130.2 million. The company’s shipyard, Quality
Shipyard, LLC, will construct three of the next generation supply vessels and two other shipyards wiill
construct the remaining seven vessels. The 10 vessels are intermediate in size and are technically
capabie of working in certain deepwater markets; however, these vessels are being constructed in order
to replace older supply vessels. Scheduled delivery of the 11 vessels is expected to commence in
April 2003 with final delivery in May 2004. As of March 31, 2003, $72.8 million has been expended on
these vessels.

During fiscal 2002, the company announced that it was expanding its crewboat fleet. The company
“purchased 10 existing crewboats and assumed four new-build contracts from Crewboats, Inc., a privately
held, leading independent provider of crewboat services in the Gulf of Mexico, for approximately
$59.8 milion. Two of the new-build vessels were delivered to the market during fiscal 2003 for an
approximate total cost of $10.4 million. Scheduled delivery for the remaining two crewboats is expected to
commence in June 2003 with final delivery in September 2003. No amounts have been expended on the
remaining two crewboats of the total $10.4 million commitment cost, as the individual vessels’ purchase
prices are due upon delivery of the respective vessels.

Alsc in fiscal 2002, the company committed $25.4 million to the construction of four, 175-foot, state-of-
the-ar, fast, crew/supply boats that blend the speed of a crewboat with the capabilities of a supply vessel.
The first 175-foot crewboat was delivered to the market during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2003 for an
approximate total cost of $6.4 million. The vessel was constructed at a U.S. shipyard that is currently
constructing the remaining three vessels. Scheduled delivery for the three vessels is expected to
commence in April 2003, with final delivery in September 2003. As of March 31, 2003, $1.4 million has
been expended on the remaining three vessels.

During fiscal 2003, the company entered into an agreement with a shipyard in Holland to construct
three water jet crewboats for an approximate cost of $2.7 million. Scheduled delivery for the three vessels
is expected to begin in August 2003 with final delivery in October 2003. As of March 31, 2003, $.7 million
has been expended on these vessels.

The table below summarizes the number of vessels that have been added to the company’s fleet
during fiscal 2003 and 2002 by vessel! class and vessel type:

Number of vessels added

Vessel class and type 2003 2002
Deepwater vessels:

Anchor handling towing supply - 2

Platform supply vessels 7 4
Replacement Fleet:

Platform supply vessels 3 -
Crew/utility:

Crewboats 3 14
Total number of vessels added to the fleet 13 20
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The table below summarizes the various vessel commitments by vessel class and type as of

March 31, 2003:
U. S. Built International Built
Number Total Expended Number Total Expended
of Cost Through of Cost Through
Vessel class and type Vessels Commitment 3/31/03 Vessels Commitment 3/31/03

(in thousands) (in thousands)

Deepwater vessels:
Anchor handling towing supply — - 5 $181,135  $122,205
Platform supply vessels - —_ 2 $34,382 $27,072

Replacement Fleet:

Platform supply vessels $113,163 $62,766 — —_ -

Crewboats:

Crewboats - 162-foot $10,360 -
Crewboats - 175-foot $19,008 $1,373
Crewboats — Water Jet — —

3 $2,732 $672
Totals $142,531 $64,139 10 $218,249  $149,949

To date, the company has financed its vessel commitment programs from its current cash balances,
its operating cash flow and its revolving credit facility. Of the total $360.8 million of capital commitments for
vessels currently under construction the company has expended $214.1 million as of March 31, 2003.

While the company has not formally committed to any future new build vessel contracts at the present
time, other than what has been discussed above, the company anticipates over the next several years
continuing its vessel building program in order to replace its aging vessels. The majority of the company’s
supply and towing supply vessels were constructed between 1976 and 1983. As such, most of this vessel
class exceeds 20 years of age and will ultimately need to be replaced. In addition to age, market conditions
will also help determine when a vessel is no longer economically viable. The company anticipates using
future operating cash flows and borrowing capacities to fund significant capital expenditures over the next
several years.

In addition to the vessel deliveries discussed above, during fiscal 2003, the company took delivery of
two large deepwater platform supply vessels (one consfructed in Brazil and the other in Norway) for
approximately $36.8 million and took delivery of three 220-foot next generation platform supply vessels for
approximately $36.6 million. The company also entered into an agreement to bareboat charter one large
platform supply vessel.

In fiscal 2002, the company took delivery of three large platform supply vessels built in Norway for a
total cost of $46.6 million. During the first quarter of fiscal 2002, the company finalized the cash purchase of
two anchor handling towing supply vessels for $48 million. The three large platform supply vessels and two
anchor handling towing supply vessels are specifically designed and equipped for deepwater work.
Throughout fiscal 2002 the company constructed and took delivery of four large traditional crewboats that
were built at U.S. shipyards for approximately $14.2 million.

During fiscal 2001, the company purchased eight vessels from The Sanko Steamship Co., Ltd. for
$160 million in cash. Four of the vessels are large anchor handling towing supply vessels and four are large
North Sea-type platform supply vessels. In addition, throughout fiscal 2001, the company purchased three
large platform supply vessels for approximately $53.8 million.

Vessel Dispositions

During fiscal 2003, the company sold one deepwater platform supply vessel and one crewboat to one
of its 48%-owned unconsolidated joint ventures for $18.8 million. The company financed the $16 million
sale of the deepwater vessel, while the joint venture paid $2.8 milion cash for the crewboat. The
transactions resulted in a fiscal 2003 gain on sales of assets of $1.1 million and increased the investments
in, at equity, and advances to unconsolidated companies’ account by $14.9 million.

During fiscal 2002, the company sold its 49% holding in its consolidated marine joint venture, Maritide

Offshore Oil Services Company S.A.E., for approximately $3.5 million, resulting in a $1.6 million gain. As a
result of the sale, the international towing-supply/supply vessel count decreased by five vessels.
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During fiscal 2001, the company sold four vessels (two offshore tugs and two crewboats) to one of its
49%-owned unconsolidated joint ventures for $17 million, of which $S million was financed by the company.
The transaction resulted in a gain on asset sale of $1 million. Also during fiscal 2001, the company sold its
40% holding in its unconsolidated marine joint venture, National Marine Service (NMS), for approximately
$31 million, resulting in a $16.8 million gain. The after-tax effect of the gain on the sale was $10.9 million, or
$.19 per share. As a result of the sale, the joint venture vessel count decreased by 24 vessels.

During the same period the company was building new vessels, the company sold and/or scrapped
121 vessels between April 2000 and March 2003. The mix of vessels disposed of includes 58 towing-
supply/supply vessels, 29 crew/utility vessels, 15 offshore tugs and 19 other vessels, primarily barges.
Included in the vessel disposition count are the NMS and Maritide vessels discussed above.

Vessels Withdrawn from Service

The company withdraws from active service older, little-used vessels at which time the vessels are
removed from the utilization statistics. Vessel utilization rates are a function of vessel days worked and
vessel days available for active vessels only. The company did not withdraw any vessel from active service
during fiscal 2003. During fiscal 2002, the company withdrew 20 vessels, primarily towing supply/supply
vessels, from active service. Eight vessels were withdrawn from active service during fiscal 2001. Vessels
that are withdrawn from active service are intended to be sold. The company continues to dispose of its
older vessels out of the active fleet and the withdrawn fleet that are not marketable due to obsolescence or
are economically prohibitive to operate due to high repair costs.

General Market Conditions and Results of Operations

Offshore service vessels provide a diverse range of services and equipment to the energy industry.
Fleet size, utilization and vessel day rates primarily determine the amount of revenues and operating
profit because operating costs and depreciation do not change proportionally when revenue changes.
Operating costs primarily consist of crew costs; repair and maintenance; insurance; fuel, lube cil and
supplies. Fleet size and utilization are the major factors that affect crew costs. The timing and amount of
repair and maintenance cosis are influenced by customer demands, vessel age and scheduled
drydockings to satisfy safety and inspection requirements mandated by reguiatory agencies. Whenever
possible, vessel drydockings are done during seasonally slow periods to minimize any impact on vessel
operations and are only dene if economically justified, given the vessel's age and physical condition. The
following table compares revenues and operating expenses (excluding general and administrative
expenses and depreciation expense) for the company's vessel fleet for the years ended March 31.
Vessel revenues and operating costs relate to vessels owned and operated by the company, while other
marine services relate to third-party activities of the company's shipyards, brokered vessels and other
miscellaneous marine-related activities.

(In thousands) 2003 2002 2001
Revenues (A):
Vessel revenues:

United States $ 103,368 203,648 197,660
Intemational 521,187 511,713 386,271
624,555 715,361 583,931
Other marine revenues 11,268 13,668 32,748
Total revenues $ 635,823 729,029 616,679
Operating costs:
Vessel operating costs:
Crew costs $ 195,404 204,081 183,502
Repair and maintenance 74,360 83,863 100,087
Insurance 20,743 21,094 20,035
Fuel, lube and supplies 31,089 31,712 29,140
Other 41,556 42,184 31,420
363,162 382,934 364,184
Costs of other marine revenues 6,649 9,174 25,096
Total operating costs $ 369,811 392,108 389,280

{A) For fiscal 2003, 2002 and 2001, one customer accounted for 13%, 10% and 11%, respectively, of revenues.
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Marine operating profit and other components of earnings before income taxes for the years ended
March 31 consists of the following:

{In thousands) 2003 2002 2001

Vessel activity:
United States $ (15,380) 56,128 26,812
International 138,945 145,412 65,241

123,565 201,540 92,053
Gain on sales of assets 6,162 6,380 22,750
Other marine services 4,168 4,042 7,137 -
Operating profit 133,895 211,962 121,940
Other income 6,343 6,313 19,701
Corporate expenses (12,116) (12,691) (13,026)
Interest and other debt costs (412) (833) (1,195)
Eamings before income taxes $ 127,710 204,751 127,420

As a result of the uncertainty of a certain customer toc make payment of vessel charter hire, the
company has deferred the recognition of approximately $5.6 million of billings as of March 31, 2003,
$4.9 million of billings as of March 31, 2002 and $7.0 million of billings as of March 31, 2001 which would
otherwise have been recognized as revenue. The company will recognize the amounts as revenue as
cash is collected or at such time as the uncertainty has been reduced.

Comparison of Fiscal 2003 to Fiscal 2002

Fiscal 2003 results of operations decreased as compared to fiscal 2002 due to a weak natural gas
market in the U.S. Gulf of Mexico. The company's fiscal 2003 domestic results of operations were
negatively affected by the retrenchment in development and capital expenditures in the U.S. Gulf of
Mexico that began in fiscal 2002 and which is discussed in detail in the Comparison of Fiscal 2002 to
Fiscal 2001 section below. Market conditions improved during fiscal 2003 as natural gas supplies
declined due to a general reduction in drilling activity, drilling interruptions caused by Tropical Storm
Isidore and Hurricane Lili in the Gulf of Mexico, and as a result of increased demand due to severe winter
weather. All of these factors contributed to higher natural gas prices, but did not result in increased gas
drilling in the Gulf of Mexico market. Although the reasons for the continuing low level of drilling and
exploration activity are not fully known, the company believes that general uncertain economic conditions
and concerns about the stability of natural gas prices are significant contributing factors. Nevertheless,
current inventory levels for the resource continue to be tight and commodity prices continue to be at
strong levels, which are positive indicators for increased drilling activity in the future. The company’s
fiscal 2003 international results of operations benefited from attractive crude oil commodity prices and high
consumer demand. Average day rates and utilization for the international vessel fleet remained relatively
stable throughout fiscal 2003 although political unrest in Venezuela during the latter part of fiscal 2003 did
have a slight negative impact on revenues. International vessel demand, which is primarily driven by crude
oil production, is expected to remain steady as international exploration and production is expected to
remain firm. The U.S. war with Iraq in the Middle East could obviously have an impact on future world oil
supply and demand, but thus far has not had a significant impact on the company’s revenues.

Domestic-based vessel revenues decreased 49% as compared to fiscal 2002 due to lower utilization
and average day rates. The company’s average day rates have not deteriorated to the low levels
experienced during the last industry downturn due to management’s strategic decision to attempt to
maintain high day rates at the expense of lower utilization. As a result of this decision, the vessel utilization
rates in the U.S. Gulf of Mexico are the lowest the company has experienced in over a decade. Ultilization
and average day rates for the towing supply/supply vessels, the company’s major income producing vessel
class in the domestic market, decreased approximately 58% and 14%, respectively as compared to fiscal
2002. At March 31, 2002, the towing-supply/supply vessels experienced approximately 16% utilization and
average day rates of approximately $5,940.

International-based vessel revenues increased a modest 2% as compared to fiscal 2002 due to
higher average day rates and an increase in the number of active vessels operating internationally. A two
month long general strike that shut down oil production in Venezuela that began in early December 2002
and lasted through early February 2003 which was led by the workers of the Venezuelan government-
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owned company PDVSA had a slight negative impact on international revenues. In December 2002, the
company had 11 vessels contracted with PDVSA. The majority of the vessels ceased operations during the
work stoppage, but continued to earn revenue on a per day basis as stipulated in the charter hire
agreements or as agreed to by PDVSA representatives. Venezuelan operations resulted in approximately
$3.5 million of revenue during the strike. Total accounts receivable from PDVSA at March 31, 2003 were
approximately $5.7 million.

In November 2000, the company purchased seven deepwater vessels that are currently fulfiliing
bareboat contractual obligations that existed at the time the vessels were purchased. The bareboat charter
agreements on six of the vessels will expire at various times over the next year, although in one of the
agreements, the charter party has the opticn to extend the contract for an additional two years. The
remaining vessel has a contractual obligation that expires within four years. In a bareboat charter
agreement, the bareboat charterer leases a vessel for a pre-arranged fee and is able to market the vessel
and is also responsible for providing the crew and all other operating costs related to the vessel. For the
vessels that the company has under bareboat contracts, only revenue and depreciation expense are
recorded related to the vessels’ activity. As the company incurs no operating costs related to the vessels,
the related bareboat day rates are less than comparable vessels operating under normal charter hire
arrangements. For fiscal year ended March 31, 2003, the seven bareboat chartered deepwater vessels
experienced 100% utilization and average day rates of approximately $6,500. The international-based
deepwater vessel fleet, excluding the bareboat chartered vessels discussed above, experienced
approximately 83% utilization and average day rates of approximately $13,500 for the fiscal year ended
March 31, 2003.

Operating profit for fiscal 2003 decreased 37% as compared to fiscal 2002 primarily as a result of
decreases in domestic-based vessel revenues. Domestic operating profit decreased most dramatically due
to a weak natural gas market in the U.S. Gulf of Mexico. Domestic-based operating costs decreased 26%
during fiscal 2003 due tc general cost cutting measures that were implemented which resulted in a reduction
of domestic crew and a decrease in the number of vessel drydockings performed. In addition, the reduction
in business activity reduced fuel, lube and supplies costs and other vessel operating cost. During fiscal
2003, international-based operating profit decreased 4% as compared to fiscal 2002 due to a slight
decrease in utilization, the negative effects of the two month long work stoppage in Venezuelan operations,
and also due to a slight increase in international operating costs, primarily crew costs and fuel, lube and
supply costs. Fiscal 2003's gain on sales of asseis was lower as compared (o fiscal 2002 due to fewer
vessels sales. Fiscal 2002 gain on sales of assets included a $3.3 million writedown in the carrying value of
certain vessels. The writedowns were a result of reviewing the recoverability of the carrying values of the
vessels that were withdrawn from active service.

Comparison of Fiscal 2002 to Fiscal 2001

Fiscal 2002 results of operations surpassed those achieved in fiscal 2001 due to strengthened world
crude oil commodity prices. Throughout fiscal 2002, OPEC adjusted crude oil production levels and
successfully negotiated with several non-OPEC oil preducing countries to adjust their respective production
levels in order to help stabilize and maintain crude oil commodity prices at levels that would sustain growth.
The higher crude oil prices resulted in international offshere drilling, exploration and production companies
increasing their capital spending budgets. International vessel demand, which is primarily driven by crude
oil production, increased throughout fiscal 2002 as a result of the improved international market conditions.
Domestic vessel demand, which is primarily driven by natural gas production, declined steadily throughout
fiscal 2002 as exploration and production companies cperating in the U.S. Gulf of Mexico reduced their
capital investments in the Gulf. The high offshore rig fleet utilization rates achieved during fiscal 2001 began
to steadily decrease during the second quarter of fiscal 2002 and continued to decrease throughout the
remainder of fiscal 2002 on the news that inventory levels for natural gas were increasing as a result of
unseasonably moderate weather and economic slowdowns in the United States and globally. The
company’'s depressed vessel utilization rates in the U.S. Gulf of Mexico were the lowest the company has
experienced in well over a decade.

During fiscal 2002, international-based vessel revenues increased 32% as compared to fiscal 2001

due to higher average day rates, utilization, and an increase in the number of active vessels in the
international-based fleet. The number of active vessels in the international fleet increased as a result of an
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aggressive deepwater vessel acquisition and construction program that began during fiscal 2001.
Seventeen deepwater vessels have been added to the company’s fleet since the beginning of fiscal 2001,
seven of which were fulfilling bareboat contractual obligations that existed at the time the vessels were
purchased. For fiscal years ended March 31, 2002 and 2001 the seven bareboat chartered deepwater
vessels experienced 100% utilization and average day rates of $6,150. The international-based deepwater
vessel fleet, excluding the bareboat chartered vessels discussed above, experienced approximately 89%

utitization and average day rates of approximately $13,300 for the year ended March 31, 2002,

Fiscal 2002 domestic-based vessel revenues increased slightly as compared to fiscal 2001 as a result
of higher average day rates. Average day rates increased due to strong demand for the company’s vessels
in the U.S. Gulf of Mexico during the first quarter of fiscal 2002 that continued from fiscal 2001. However,
during the second quarter of fiscal 2002, vessel demand began tc decrease and continued to decrease
throughout the remainder of the fiscal year as offshore drilling and exploration in the U.S. Gulf of Mexico
waned. The company was able to achieve solid average day rates throughout fiscal 2002, although it did
experience deterioration in vessel utilization throughout fiscal 2002. At March 31, 2002, the towing-
supply/supply vessels, the company’s largest major income producing asset in the U.S. Gulf of Mexico,
experienced approximately 25% utilization and average day rates of approximately $6,500.

Operating profit for fiscal 2002 increased 74% as compared to fiscal 2001 as a result of increases in
vessel revenues. Crew costs increased during fiscal 2002 as a result of better market conditions and
additional vessels in the international areas of operations. Repair and maintenance costs decreased from .
the fiscal 2001 level as fiscal 2001 included an unusually high number of drydockings resulting from an
intense drydocking program the company initiated in order to ready its equipment for an expected
improvement in demand for its vessels. Included in fiscal 2002’s gain on sales of assets is a $1.6 million
gain from the sale of the company’s 49% holiding in its consolidated marine joint venture, Maritide Offshore
Oil Services Company S.A.E., for approximately $3.5 million and a $3.3 million writedown in the carrying
values of certain vessels that were withdrawn from active service and held for sale. The writedown is a
result of reviewing the recoverability of the carrying values of the vessels that were withdrawn from active
service. Fiscal year 2001’s gain on sales of assets included a $16.8 million gain on the sale of the
company’s 40% holding in its unconsolidated marine joint venture, National Marine Service. Fiscal 2002
other income decreased as compared to fiscal 2001 because the company had less excess cash invested
in short-term, interest-bearing securities than the previous fiscal year as a result of the use of the funds for
vessel acquisition and new-build programs.

Vessel Class Statistics

Vessel utilization is determined primarily by market conditions and to a lesser extent by drydocking
requirements. Vessel day rates are determined by the demand created through the level of offshore
exploration, development and production spending by energy companies relative to the supply of offshore
service vessels. Suitability of equipment and the degree of service provided also influence vessel day rates.
The following tables compare day-based utilization percentages and average day rates by vessel class and
in total for each of the quarters in the years ended March 31:
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UTILIZATION:

Fiscal Year 2003 First Second Third Fourth Year
Domestic-based fleet:
Deepwater vessels 91.0% 78.4 95.3 90.9 89.1
Towing-supply/supply 228 20.2 24.0 18.2 21.3
Crew/utility 66.8 66.7 78.4 713 70.8
Offshore tugs 242 21.8 453 232 285
Total 32.5% 30.9 39.9 31.8 33.8
International-based fieet:
Deepwater vessels 87.3% 89.3 87.7 85.8 87.5
Towing-supply/supply 79.9 78.1 79.3 76.4 78.5
Crew/utility 81.5 822 81.0 78.7 80.6
Offshore tugs 65.7 74.6 60.6 62.7 65.9
Other 56.0 55.7 50.5 51.5 53.5
Total 77.2% 775 76.0 74.2 76.2
Woridwide fieet:
Deepwater vessels 87.6% 87.8 88.8 86.6 87.7
Towing-supply/supply 59.5 57.9 60.0 56.1 58.4
Crew/utility 761 76.6 80.1 76.0 771
Offshore tugs 48.9 53.6 54.7 47.7 51.2
Other 56.0 55.7 50.5 51.5 53.5
Total 62.3% 62.3 64.2 60.4 62.3
Fiscal Year 2002 First Second Third Fourth Year
Domestic-based fleet:
Deepwater vessels 100.0% 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0
Towing-supply/supply 71.5 59.3 40.2 27.8 50.4
Crew/utility 91.4 93.2 84.9 70.3 84.0
Offshore tugs 38.1 42,6 48.8 3141 40.2
Other 22.0 47.7 57.2 57.4 43.5
Total 66.7% 61.1 51.8 379 54.6
Intemational-based fieet:
Deepwater vessels 95.6% 92.5 90.8 89.2 92.0
Towing-supply/supply 745 77.3 82.4 81.3 78.8
Crew/utility 88.7 84.0 90.2 86.0 87.2
Offshore tugs 70.9 70.1 75.9 704 71.8
Other 46.9 56.0 67.0 67.1 58.7
Total 752% 76.8 82.3 80.3 78.6
Worldwide fleet:
Deepwater vessels 96.0% 93.1 91.5 80.0 92.6
Towing-supply/supply 73.4 70.7 67.2 62.4 68.6
Crew/utility 89.6 86.9 88.1 79.9 86.1
Offshore tugs 56.9 58.4 64.4 535 58.3
Other 415 54.0 64.4 66.7 55.7
Total 72.3% 714 715 65.9 70.3
Fiscal Year 2001 First Second Third Fourth Year
Domestic-based fleet:
Deepwater vessels 98.5% 100.0 88.7 98.9 86.7
Towing-supply/supply 56.1 63.3 63.4 68.1 62.7
Crew/utility 86.9 89.2 93.0 87.5 89.1
Offshore tugs 335 406 324 374 359
Other 30.7 239 11.2 27.2 232
Total 56.0% 61.7 59.9 63.7 60.3
Intemational-based fieet:
Deepwater vessels 70.3% 81.4 79.0 93.8 84.1
Towing-supply/supply 76.9 75.4 80.6 76.6 77.4
Crew/utility 93.9 91.5 95.3 88.5 92.3
Offshore tugs 66.8 67.3 72.8 64.5 67.8
Other 424 47.0 49.7 41.1 45.1
Total 74.5% 74.1 78.8 74.8 75.5
Worldwide fleet:
Deepwater vessels 78.8% 86.6 80.5 94.3 86.4
Towing-supply/supply 68.7 70.8 74.0 73.5 7.7
Crew/utility 915 907 94.5 88.2 912
Offshore tugs 51.9 55.0 54.2 52.2 53.3
Other 39.9 420 411 37.8 40.3
Total 67.5% 69.4 71.8 70.8 69.9
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AVERAGE DAY RATES:

Fiscal Year 2003 First Second Third Fourth Year
Domestic-based fleet:
Deepwater vessels $ 13,506 12,745 13,081 13,867 13,332
Towing-supply/supply 6,116 6,059 5,802 5,979 5,984
Crewl/utility 2,734 2,665 2,567 2,602 2,638
Offshore tugs 7,485 6,415 6,355 7,532 6,839
Total $ 5232 5,082 5,132 5,357 5,196
Intemational-based fieet:
Deepwater vessels $ 11,540 11,446 11,406 10,887 11,308
Towing-supply/supply 6,471 6,271 6,314 6,347 6,363
Crew/utility 2,916 2,843 2,764 2,878 2,833
Offshore tugs 4,451 4,578 3,844 4,013 4,243
Other 854 907 1,052 825 912
Total $ 5744 5,629 5,640 5,668 5,670
Worldwide fieet:
Deepwater vessels $ 11,722 11,602 11,670 11,370 11,582
Towing-supply/supply 6,423 6,245 6,243 6,306 6,314
Crew/utility 2,857 2,787 2,695 2,785 2,769
Offshore tugs 5,060 4,877 4,653 4,667 4812
Other 854 907 1,052 825 912
Total $ 5,655 5,540 5,537 5614 5,586
Fiscal Year 2002 First Second Third Fourth Year
Domestic-based fleet:
Deepwater vessels $ 11,756 11,774 11,761 12,164 11,864
Towing-supply/supply 7,181 7,042 6,631 6,552 6,951
Crew/utility 2,838 2,948 3,089 2,885 2,951
Offshore tugs 8,160 7,467 6,131 7,625 7,259
Other 1,427 1,467 1,490 1,822 1,490
Total $ 6,437 6,088 5,255 5,491 5,895
International-based fleet:
Deepwater vessels $ 9,936 10,778 11,763 11,408 10,975
Towing-supply/supply 5,774 5,971 6,140 6,447 6,085
Crew/utility 2,385 2,479 2,622 2,757 2,561
Offshore tugs 4,799 4,682 4,566 4,502 4,639
Other 953 1,070 1,148 1,558 1,195
Total $ 5,163 5,346 5,496 5,709 5,430
Woarldwide fleet:
Deepwater vessels $ 10,091 10,864 11,764 11,472 11,050
Towing-supply/supply 6,276 6,299 6,245 6,464 6,316
Crew/utility 2,537 2,640 2,803 2,800 2,699
Offshore tugs 5,765 5,541 5,073 5,285 5,410
Other 1,007 1,155 1,227 1,566 1,242
Total $ 5,568 5,565 5434 5,667 5,555
Fiscal Year 2001 First Second Third Fourth Year
Domestic-based fleet:
Deepwater vessels $ 11,622 11,643 11,530 11,760 11,634
Towing-supply/supply 3,659 4,248 5,897 6,717 5,172
Crew/utility 2,046 2,197 2,544 2,724 2,373
Offshore tugs 6,235 5,927 6,298 6,902 6,325
Other 1,305 1,643 1,434 2,071 1,630
Total $ 3735 4,169 5,306 5,967 4,803
interational-based fleet:
Deepwater vessels $ 7413 8,954 8,633 8,270 8,366
Towing-supply/supply 4,985 4,981 5,095 5,482 5,137
Crew/utility 2,237 2,246 2,244 2,334 2,264
Offshore tugs 3,814 4,224 4,226 4,662 4,223
Other 1,624 1,318 1,362 974 1,335
Total $ 4,173 4,245 4,391 4,841 4,415
Worldwide fleet:
Deepwater vessels $ 8,092 9,827 9,148 8,619 9,040
Towing-supply/supply 4,558 4727 5,361 5,808 5,149
Crewi/utility 2,173 2,229 2,346 2,467 2,301
Offshore tugs 4,516 4,804 4,796 5,378 4,867
Other 1,572 1,357 1,366 1,163 1,373
Total $ 4,035 4,220 4,674 5,202 4,539
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The average age of the company's owned or chartered vessel fleet is approximately 20 years. The
average age for the 54 vessels that the company acquired or constructed in the last three years, which was
discussed in the “Vessel Acquisition and Construction Programs” section, is three years. The remaining 435
vessels have an average age of 22 years. The following table compares the average number of vessels by
class and geographic distribution during the years ended March 31 and the actual March 31, 2003 vessel
count:

Actual Vessel Average Number
Count at of Vessels During
March 31, Year Ended March 31,
2003 2003 2002 2001
Domestic-based fleet:
Deepwater vessels 6 4 2 2
Towing-supply/supply 100 101 106 118
Crew/utitity 30 32 29 26
Offshore tugs 24 25 29 32
Other — — 7 9
Total 160 162 173 187
Intemational-based fleet:

Deepwater vessels 28 26 24 12
Towing-supply/supply 186 185 188 188
Crew/utility 56 56 51 48
Offshore tugs 39 39 39 38
Other 20 24 26 31
Total 329 330 328 317

Owned or chartered vessels included
in marine revenues 489 492 501 504
Vessels withdrawn from active service 26 34 37 44
Joint-venture and other 30 29 28 35
Total 545 555 566 583

During fiscal 2003, the company took delivery of seven large deepwater platform supply vessels,
three 220-foot platform supply vessels, three crewboats and entered into an agreement to bareboat charter
one large platform supply vessel. Excluding the two vessels sold o one of the company’s 48%-owned
unconsolidated joint venture, the company sold and/or scrapped 24 vessels during fiscal 2003. The mix of
vessels disposed of includes 12 towing-supply/supply vessels, three offshore tugs, five crew/utility
vessels and four other type vessels.

Included in the domestic-based crew/utility vessel count for fiscal 2002 are 10 crewboat vessels
purchased in September 2001. Three of the four large, {raditional crewboats that the company constructed
and took delivery of at various times throughout fiscal 2002 are included in the international-based
crew/utility vessel count.

During fiscal 2002, the company took delivery of four large piatform supply vessels and finalized the
purchase of two anchor handling towing supply vessels. During fiscal 2001, the company purchased four
anchor handling towing supply vessels and four large platform supply vessels from the Sanko Steamship
Co,, Ltd. and also purchased an additional three large platform supply vessels.

During fiscal 2002, the company sold its 49% holding in its consolidated marine joint venture, Maritide
Offshore Oil Services Company S.A.E. As a result of the sale, the international towing-supply/supply vessel
count decreased by five vessels. Also, during fiscal 2002, the company withdrew from active service 20
older, little-used vessels, primarily towing-supply/supply vessels. Nine vessels were withdrawn from the
domestic market and 11 were withdrawn from the international market. The company sold and/or scrapped
31 vessels throughout fiscal 2002. The mix of vessels disposed of includes nine towing-supply/supply
vessels, four crew/utility vessels, seven offshore tugs and 11 other vessels, primarily barges.

During fiscal 2001, the company sold its 40% holding in its unconsolidated marine joint venture,
National Marine Service. As a result of the sale, the joint venture vessel count decreased by 24 vessels.
Also during fiscal 2001, the company sold four vessels (two offshore tugs and two crew boats) to its 40%-
owned unconsolidated joint venture, Sonatide Marine, Lid. The company withdrew from active service
eight vessels during fiscal 2001. In addition, the company sold and/or scrapped 37 vessels throughout
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fiscal 2001. The mix of vessels disposed of includes 14 towing-supply/supply vessels, 16 crew/utility
vessels, three offshore tugs and four other vessels, primarily barges.

General and Administrative Expenses

Consolidated general and administrative expenses for the years ended March 31 consists of the
following components:

(in thousands) 2003 2002 2001
Personnel $ 38,799 39,880 40,214
Office and property 12,146 11,893 10,983
Sales and marketing 4,521 4,809 4,793
Professional service 5,420 5,380 4,262
Other 4,520 4,889 5,253
$ 65,406 66,851 65,505

General and administrative expenses for fiscal 2003 decreased as compared to fiscal 2002 due to the
retrenchment in the domestic natural gas market. Fiscal 2002 general and administrative costs increased
2% as compared to fiscal 2001 due to an improving business environment in the international market.

Liquidity, Capital Resources and Other Matters

The company’s current ratio, level of working capital and amount of cash flows from operations for
any year are directly related to fleet activity and vessel day rates. Variations from year-to-year in these
items are primarily the result of market conditions. As a result of recent vessel purchases and cash
expenditures for vessel construction programs, the company’s cash balances at March 31, 2003 and 2002
are at considerably reduced levels compared to March 31, 2001. Cash from operations, in combination with
an available line of credit, provide the company, in management’s opinion, with adequate resources to
satisfy its current financing requirements. At March 31, 2003, $61 million of the company’s $200 million
revolving line of credit was available for future financing needs. Continued payment of dividends, currently
at $.15 per quarter per common share, is subject to declaration by the Board of Directors.

Net cash provided by operating activities for any fiscal year will fluctuate according to the leve! of
business activity for the applicable year. Fiscal year 2003 net cash provided by operating activities was
slightly higher than the previous fiscal year due primarily to an increase in accounts receivable collections.

Investing activities for fiscal 2003 used approximately $255.9 million of cash. Proceeds from the sale
of assets totaling $13.7 million decreased as compared to fiscal 2002 due to fewer vessel sales. Sale
proceeds were offset by additions to properties and equipment totaling $269.6 miillion which was comprised
of $238.3 million for the construction of offshore marine vessels, $30 million in capitalized repairs,
maintenance and vessel enhancements, and $1.3 million in other properties and equipment purchases.
Additions to properties and equipment were lower in fiscal 2003 as compared to fiscal 2002 primarily due to
fewer vessel acquisitions and less capital spending on vessels under construction during the current fiscal
year as disclosed in the “Vessel Acquisition and Construction Programs” section of ltem 7.

Investing activities for fiscal 2002 used approximately $300.2 million of cash. Proceeds from the sale
of assets totaling $17.5 million decreased as compared to fiscal 2001 due to fewer vessels sales. Sale
proceeds were offset by additions to properties and equipment totaling $317.9 million which was comprised
of $300.7 million for the construction of offshore marine vessels and the acquisition of two deepwater anchor
handling towing supply vessels and 11 large crewboats, and $17.2 million in capitalized repairs and
maintenance. Additions to properties and equipment were higher in fiscal 2002 as compared to fiscal 2001
primarily because of the continuation in capital spending for various vessel construction programs and due
to the purchase of several crewboat vessels.

Investing activities for fiscal 2001 used approximately $258.9 million of cash. Proceeds from the sale
of assets totaling $46.6 million decreased as compared to fiscal 2000 primarily due to fewer vessels being
sold. Included in fiscal 2001 proceeds on the sale of assets is approximately $31 million from the sale of the
company’s 40% interest in its unconsolidated marine joint venture company, National Marine Service, and
$15.6 million from the sale and/or scrapping of 37 vessels during the year. Sale proceeds were offset by
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additions to properties and equipment tctaling $302.8 million which was comprised of $286.4 million for the
construction of offshore marine vessels and the acquisition of 11 vessels and $13.6 million of capitalized
repairs and maintenance.

Fiscal 2003 financing activities provided $58.8 million of cash, which included $110 million of credit
facility borrowings that were offset by repayment of debt of $25 millicn. The company used its credit facility
borrowings to help finance the company’s various vessel construction pregrams and vessel acquisitions as
disclosed in the “Vessel Acquisition and Construction Programs” section of item 7. The company also used
$33.8 million of cash for the payment of quarterly common stock dividends of $.60 per share.

Fiscal 2002 financing activities provided $22.6 million of cash, which included $74 million of credit
facility borrowings that were offset by repayments of debt of $20 million. Borrowings were used to help
finance the company’s various vessel construction programs and vessel acquisitions. The company alsc
used $33.7 million of cash for the payment of quarterly common stock dividends of $.60 per share. Fiscal
2001 financing activities used $256 million of cash primarily for payment of quarterly common stock
dividends.

Interest and debt costs incurred, net of interest capitalized, for fiscal 2003, 2002 and 2001 was
approximately $.4 million, $.8 million and $1.2 million, respectively. Interest costs capitalized during fiscal
2003 and 2002 was approximately $2.8 million and $1 millicn, respectively. No interest cosis were
capitalized during fiscal 2001.

While the company has not formally committed to any future new build vessel contracts at the present
time, other than what has been discussed in the “Vessel Acquisition and Censtruction Programs” section of
ltem 7, the company anticipates over the next several years continuing its vessel building program in crder
to replace its aging vessels. The majority of the company’s supply and towing supply vessels were
constructed between 1876 and 1983. As such, most of this vessel class exceeds 20 years of age and will
ultimately need to be replaced. In addition to age, market conditions will also help determine when a vessel
is no longer economically viable. The company anticipates using future operating cash flows and borrowing
capacities to fund significant capital expenditures over the next several years.

During the ongoing examinations of the company’s income tax returns covering fiscal years 1999 and
2000, the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) has informed the company that it intends to raise certain issues
concerning the depreciation methods historically utilized by the company and the entire offshore marine
support industry. The IRS position, if ultimately proposed and sustained, could resuit in additicnal income
tax due approximating $28.5 million related to fiscal years 1999 and 2000. Additionally, if the IRS were also
to successfully propose a second adjustment covering the cumulative effect of such a depreciation method
change, then a further additional income tax of $25.5 million could also be due related to fiscal years prior to
1899.

Such additional taxes due, if any, would result in a reclassification of a previously recorded non-
current deferred income tax liability to a current income tax payable. Other than a charge for interest related
to amounts due, if any, this issue would have no effect on the company’s statement of earnings. The
company intends to vigorously contest any audit deficiency when issued by the IRS and believes that any
final cutcome of this controversy will not have a material adverse effect on its financial position or resuits of
operations.
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Contractual Obligations

The following table summarizes the company’s consolidated contractual obligations at
March 31, 2003.

({In thousands) Payments Due by Period
Less than 1-3 3-5 More Than
Contractual Obligation Total One Year Years Years 5 Years

Long-Term Debt $ 139,000 — 139,000 — -
Operating Leases (A) $ 15,062 3,990 6,200 2,003 2,779
Vessel Construction Obligations $ 146,963 130,427 16,536 - —
Total $ 301,025 134,417 161,736

(A) Operating leases include only non-cancelable lease obligations greater than one year.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In April 2002, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 145, "Rescission of FASB Statements No. 4, 44, and 84, Amendment of
FASB Statement No. 13, and Technical Corrections,” which supersedes previous guidance for reporting
gains and losses from extinguishment of debt and accounting for leases, among other things. The portion of
the statement relating to the rescission of SFAS No. 4, "Reporting Gains and Losses from Extinguishment of
Debt" requires that any gain or loss on extinguishment of debt that was classified as an extraordinary item
that does not meet the unusual in nature and infrequent of occurrence criteria in Accounting Principles
Board (APB) Opinion No. 30, "Reporting the Results of Operations—Reporting the Effects of Disposal of a
Segment of a Business, and Extraordinary, Unusual and Infrequently Occurring Events and Transactions”
shall be reclassified. There was no impact to the company's financial condition or results of operations with
the adoption of SFAS No. 145.

In June 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146, “Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal
Activities” which requires that liabilities for costs associated with exit or disposal activities initiated after
December 31, 2002 be recognized when incurred, rather than at the date of a commitment to an exit or
disposal plan. There was no impact to the company’s financial statements with the adoption of SFAS
No. 148.

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148, "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation —
Transition and Disclosure,” which amends SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” to
provide alternative methods of transition to the fair value method of accounting for stock-based employee
compensation, and also amends the disclosure provision of SFAS No. 123 to require disclosure in the
summary of significant accounting policies the effects of an entity’s accounting policy with respect to stock-
based employee compensation on reported net income and earnings per share in annual and interim
financial statements. The disclosure provision is required for all companies with stock-based employee
compensation, regardiess of whether the company utilizes the fair method of accounting described in
SFAS No. 123 or the intrinsic value method described in APB Opinion No. 25, "Accounting for Stock Issued
to Employees.” SFAS No. 148's amendment of the transition and annual disclosure provisions of
SFAS No. 123 are effective for fiscal years ending after December 15, 2002. The disclosure requirements
for interim financial statements containing condensed consolidated financial statements are effective for
interim periods beginning after December 15, 2002. The company continues to use the intrinsic value
method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation described by APB Opinion No. 25; therefore,
the alternate methods of transition do not apply. The company has adopted the SFAS No. 148 disclosure
requirement.

Effects of Inflation

Day-to-day operating costs are generally affected by inflation. However, because the energy services
industry requires specialized goods and services, general economic inflationary trends may not affect the
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company’s operating costs. The major impact on operating costs is the level of offshore exploration,
development and production spending by energy exploration and production companies. As the spending
increases, prices of goods and services used by the energy industry and the energy services industry will
increase. Future increases in vessel day rates may shield the company from the inflationary effects on
operating costs.

Environmental Matters

During the ordinary course of business the company's operations are subject to a wide variety of
environmental laws and regulations. The company attempts to comply with these laws and regulations in
order to avoid costly accidents and related environmental damage. Compliance with existing governmental
regulations that have been enacted or adopted regulating the discharge of materials into the environment, or
otherwise relating to the protection of the environment, has not had, nor is expected to have, a material
effect on the company. The company is proactive in establishing policies and operating procedures for
safeguarding the environment against any environmentally hazardous material aboard its vessels and at
shore base locations. Whenever possible, hazardous materials are maintained or transferred in confined
areas to ensure containment if accidents occur. In addition the company has established operating policies
that are intended to increase awareness of actions that may harm the environment.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Market risk refers to the potential losses arising from changes in interest rates, foreign currency
fluctuations and exchange rates, equity prices and commodity prices including the correlation among these
factors and their volatility. The company is primarily exposed to interest rate risk and foreign currency
fluctuations and exchange risk.

Interest Rate Risk. Changes in interest rates may result in changes in the fair market value of the
company’s financial instruments, interest income and interest expense. The company's financial
instruments that are exposed to interest rate risk are its cash equivalents and long-term borrowings. Due to
the short duration and conservative nature of the cash equivalent investment portfolio, the company does
not expect any material loss with respect to its investments. The book value for cash equivalents is
considered to be representative of its fair value.

At March 31, 2003 the company had $139 million of debt outstanding. The outstanding debt
represents unsecured borrowings from the company’s revolving credit facility. The fair value of this debt
approximates the carrying value because the borrowings bear interest at variable market rates, which
currently range from 2.03 to 2.41 percent. Monies were borrowed under the revolving credit facility to
finance the company’s new-build program previousiy disclosed. Interest expense associated with the
borrowings is being capitalized. A one percentage point change in market interest rate of the company’s
debt at March 31, 2003 would change the company’s interest costs by $1.4 million annually.

Foreign Exchange Risk. The company's financial instruments that can be affected by foreign
currency fluctuations and exchange risks consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables
and trade payables denominated in currencies other than the U.S. dollar. The company periodically enters
into spot and forward derivative financial instruments as a hedge against foreign currency denominated
assets and liabilities and currency commitments.

Spot derivative financial instruments are short-term in nature and settle within two business days.
The fair value approximates the carrying value due to the short-term nature of this instrument, and as a
result, no gains or losses are recognized. Forward derivative financial instruments are generally longer-term
in nature but generally do not exceed one year. The accounting for gains or losses on forward contracts is
dependent on the nature of the risk being hedged and the effectiveness of the hedge. The company enters
into derivative instruments only to the extent considered necessary to meet its risk management objectives
and does not use derivative contracts for speculative purposes.

The company had no spot coniracts outstanding at March 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001. The company

had no derivative financial instruments outstanding at March 31, 2003 that qualified as a hedge instrument.
At March 31, 2002 the company had five forward currency derivative contracts outstanding totaling
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$11.5 million. The company had one forward contract outstanding totaling $11 million that qualified as a
hedge instrument at March 31, 2001. For full disclosure on the company’s derivative financial instruments
see Note 9 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Because of its significant international operations, the company is exposed to currency fluctuations
and exchange risk on all contracts in foreign currencies. The company does not hedge against any foreign
currency rate fluctuations associated with foreign currency contracts that arise in the normal course of
business. To minimize the financial impact of these items the company attempts to contract a majority of its
services in United States dollars. The company continually monitors the currency exchange risks
associated with all contracts not denominated in U.S. dollar.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The information required by this item is included in Part IV of this report.

[TEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.




PART It

ITEM 18. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

information concerning directors of the company is incorporated by reference from the company's
definitive proxy statement to be filed on or before July 29, 2003. For information regarding executive officers
of the company, see item 4A of this report.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Information concerning executive compensation is incorporated by reference from the proxy
statement described in Item 10 of this report.

ITEM 12. SECURITY CWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

Information concerning security ownership of certain beneficial owners and management is
incorporated by reference from the proxy statement described in ltem 10 of this report.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table provides information as of March 31, 2003 about equity compensation plans of the
company under which shares of common stock of the company are authorized for issuance:

Number of securities
remaining available for
future issuance under

Number of securities to Weighted-average equity compensation
be issued upon exercise exercise price of plans (excluding
of outstanding options, outstanding options, securities reflected in
warrants and rights warrants and rights column (A)
Plan category (A) B) (C)
Equity compensation pians
approved by shareholders 4,330,482 35.93 1,568,172 (1)
Equity compensation plans
not approved by shareholders - - 222,352 (2)
Balance at March 31, 2003 4,330,482 (3) 35.93 1,790,524

(1) Includes 21,338 shares available for grant under the company's 1897 Steck Incentive Plan that could be issued as restricted stock and up
to 300,000 shares that could be issued as restricted stock or other non-option award under the company's 2001 stock incentive plan.

(2) Al of such shares are issuable as restricted stock under the company's Employee Restricted Stock Plan. See the description of the
employee Restricted Stock Plan included in Note 7 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

(3) If the exercise of these outstanding options and issuance of additional common shares had occurred as of March 31, 2003, these shares
would represent 7% of the then total outstanding common shares of the company.

ITEWM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

Information concerning certain relationships and related transactions is incorporated by reference
from the proxy statement described in ltem 10 of this report.

[TEM 14. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Within 90 days prior to the date of this report, the company evaluated, under the supervision and with
the participation of the company’s management, including the company’s President and Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer, the effectiveness of the design and operation of the company’s
disclosure controls and procedures pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 13a-14. Based on that evaluation, the
company's President and Chief Executive Officer along with the company’s Chief Financial Officer
concluded that the company’s disclosure controls and procedures are effective in timely alerting them to
material information relating to the company (including its consolidated subsidiaries) required to be
disclosed in the reports the company files with the Securities and Exchange Commission. There have been
no significant changes in the company’s internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect
internal controls subsequent to the date the company carried out its evaluation.
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PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS. FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES, AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-

A Financial Statements and Schedules

The Consolidated Financial Statements and Schedule of the company listed on the accompanying
index to Financial Statements and Schedule (see page F-1) are filed as part of this report.

B. Reports on Form 8-K

1. The company filed a report on Form 8-K dated January 21, 2003. Under ltem 9, the company filed as
exhibits to this Form 8-K certifications, required under Section 8056 of the Sarbanes-Oxley, of its chief
executive officer and chief financial officer to its Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended
December 31, 2002.

The company’s report on Form 8-K dated February 20, 2003 reports under ltem 9 that the company
entered into an agreement with ENSCO International Incorporated to acquire ENSCO’s 27-vessel
Gulf of Mexico based marine fleet. The transaction is subject to regulatory review and is expected to
close in early April 2003.

The company’s report on Form 8-K dated March 31, 2003 reports under ltem 9 that the company and
ENSCO International Incorporated received Hart-Scott-Rodino clearance for the closing of the sale of
ENSCO’s 27-vessel fleet to Tidewater and that all other conditions related to the sale were satisfied.

C. Exhibits

The index below describes each exhibit filed as a part of this report. Exhibits not incorporated by
reference to a prior filing are designated by an asterisk; all exhibits not so designated are incorporated
herein by reference to a prior filing as indicated.

w
—
0
—
]

Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Tidewater Inc. (filed with the Commission as Exhibit 3(a)
to the company's quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 1993).

3(b) - Tidewater Inc. Bylaws (filed with the Commission as Exhibit 3(b) to the company's quarterly report
on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1999).

4(a) - Restated Rights Agreement dated as of September 19, 1996 between Tidewater Inc. and The
First National Bank of Boston (fled with the Commission as Exhibit 1 to Form 8-A on
September 30, 1996).

10(a) - $200,000,000 Revolving Credit and Term Loan Agreement dated April 26, 2001.

10(b) - Tidewater Inc. 1975 Incentive Program Stock Option Plan, as amended in 1990 (filed with the
Commission as Exhibit 10(c) to the company's annual report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended March 31, 1991).

10(c) - Tidewater Inc. Amended and Restated 1992 Stock Option and Restricted Stock Plan dated
July 27, 2000.

10(d) - Tidewater Inc. Second Amended and Restated Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan dated
October 1, 1999 (filed with the Commission as Exhibit 10(f) to the company's quarterly report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended December 31, 1999).

10{(e) - Second Amended and Restated Employees’ Supplemental Savings Plan of Tidewater Inc. dated
October 1, 1899 (filed with the Commission as Exhibit 10{d) to the company's quarterly report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended December 31, 1899).
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10(f)

10(g)

10(h)

10(i)

10(j)

10(k)

10(1)

*10(m)

10(n)

10(0)

10(p)

w21

*23

Supptemental Health Plan for Executive Officers of Tidewater Inc. (filed with the Commission as
Exhibit 10(i) to a Registration Statement on September 12, 1989, Registration No. 33-31016).

Amended and Restated Deferred Compensation Plan for Outside Directors of Tidewater Inc.,
effective November 21, 2002 (filed with the Commission as Exhibit 10(b) to the company's
quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended December 31, 2002).

Restated Non-Qualified Pension Plan for Outside Directors of Tidewater Inc., effective
October 1, 1998 (filed with the Commission as Exhibit 10(h) to the company's quarterly report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended December 31, 1999).

Amended and Restated Change of Control Agreement dated October 1, 1999 between Tidewater
and William C. O'Malley (filed with the Commission as Exhibit 10(b) to the company's quarterly
report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended December 31, 1999).

Form of Amended and Restated Change of Control Agreement dated October 1, 1989 with three
executive officers of Tidewater Inc. (filed with the Commission as Exhibit 10(c) to the company’s
quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended December 31, 1939).

Tidewater Inc. 1896 Annual Incentive Plan (filed with the Commission as Exhibit 10(m) to the
company’s annual report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended March 31, 1997).

Employment Agreement dated September 25, 1997 between Tidewater Inc. and William C.
O'Malley (filed with the Commissicn as Exhibit 10 to the company's report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended September 30, 1997).

$100,000,000 Term Loan Agreement dated March 28, 2003.

Amended and Restated Tidewater Inc. 1997 Stock Incentive Plan dated November 21, 2002
(filed with the Commission as Exhibit 10(a) to the company's report on Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended December 31, 2002).

Restated Non-Qualified Deferred Compensation Plan and Trust Agreement as Restated
October 1, 1999 between Tidewater Inc. and Merrill Lynch Trust Company of America (filed with
the Commission as Exhibit 10(e) to the company's quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended December 31, 1999).

Second Restated Executives Supplemental Retirement Trust as Restated October 1, 1999
between Tidewater Inc. and Hibernia National Bank (filed with the Commission as Exhibit 10(j) to
the company's guarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended December 31, 1999).
Subsidiaries of the company.

Consent of independent Auditors.
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SIGNATURES OF REGISTRANT

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1933, the Registrant
has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized on
April 22, 2003.

TIDEWATER INC.
(Registrant)

By: s/ Dean E. Taylor
Dean E. Taylor
President, Chief Executive Officer and Director

By: /s/ J. Keith Lousteau
J. Keith Lousteau
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

By: /s/ Joseph M. Bennett
Joseph M. Bennett
Vice President and Corporate Controiler
(Principal Accounting Officer)

SIGNATURES OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed
below by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities indicated on April 22, 2003.

{s/ William C. O'Malley s/ Paul W. Murrill
William C. O’'Malley Paul W. Murrill
Chairman of the Board

/s/ Robert H. Boh /s/ Richard A. Pattarozzi
Robert H. Boh Richard A. Pattarozzi
s/ Arthur R. Carlson /sl Lester Pollack
Arthur R. Carlson Lester Pollack

s/ Jon C. Madonna {s/ J. Hugh Roff, Jr.

Jon C. Madonna J. Hugh Roff, Jr.

/s/ Dean E. Tavlor /s/Donald G. Russell
Dean E. Taylor Donald G. Russell
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1.

2.

CEO CiVIL CERTIFICATION

1, Dean E. Taylor, certify that:

| have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Tidewater Incorporated;

Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material
fact or omit to state a material fact necessary tc make the statements made, in light of the
circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the
period covered by this annual report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
annual report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations
and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

The registrant's other certifying officers and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for
the registrant and we have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information
relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this annual report is
being prepared;

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures as of a
date within 80 days prior to the filing date of this annual report (the "Evaluation Date");
and

c) presented in this annual report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure

controls and procedures based on cur evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;

The registrant's other certifying officers and | have disclosed, based on our most recent
evaluation, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of registrant's board of directors
(or persons performing the equivalent function):

a) all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could
adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial
data and have identified for the registrant's auditors any material weaknesses in internal
controls; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who
have a significant role in the registrant's internal controls; and

The registrant's other certifying officers and | have indicated in this annual report whether or not
there were significant changes in internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect
internal controls subsequent to the date of our most recent evaluation, including any corrective
actions with regard to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses.

April 22, 2003 {s/ Dean E. Taylor
Dean E. Taylor

President and Chief Executive Officer
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CFO CiVIL CERTIFICATION

[, J. Keith Lousteau, certify that:

1.

2.

Date:

| have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Tidewater Incorporated;

Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material
fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the
circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the
period covered by this annual report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
annual report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations
and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

The registrant's other certifying officers and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for
the registrant and we have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information
relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this annual report is

being prepared,;

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures as of a
date within 80 days prior to the filing date of this annual report (the "Evaluation Date");
and

c) presented in this annual report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure

controls and procedures based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;

The registrant's other certifying officers and | have disclosed, based on our most recent
evaluation, to the registrant's auditors and the audit commitiee of registrant's board of directors
(or persons performing the equivalent function):

a) all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could
adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial
data and have identified for the registrant's auditors any material weaknesses in internal
controls; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who
have a significant role in the registrant's internal controls; and

The registrant's other certifying officers and | have indicated in this annual report whether or not
there were significant changes in internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect
internal controls subsequent to the date of our most recent evaluation, including any corrective
actions with regard to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses.

April 22, 2003 s/ J. Keith Lousteau
J. Keith Lousteau
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Tidewater Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Tidewater Inc. as of March 31, 2003
and 2002 and the related consolidated statements of earnings, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for
each of the three years in the period ended March 31, 2003. Our audits also included the financial
statement scheduie listed in the accompanying Index to Financial Statements and Schedule. These
financial statements and schedule are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audiis provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of Tidewater Inc. at March 31, 2003 and 2002, and the
consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
March 31, 2003, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. Also, in
our opinion, the related financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic financial
statements taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company adopted Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 142 in the year ended March 31, 2002.

ERNST & YOUNG LLP

New Orleans, Louisiana
April 21, 2003



TIDEWATER INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

March 31, 2003 and 2002
(In thousands)

ASSETS 2003 2002
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 17,767 11,882
Trade and other receivables, less allowance for doubtful accounts
of $7,304 in 2003 and $7,944 in 2002 160,773 182,592
Marine operating supplies 31,277 28,071
Other current assets 3,675 4,035
Total current assets 213,492 226,581
Investments in, at equity, and advances to unconsclidated companies 27,445 13,722
Properties and equipment:
Vessels and related equipment 2,077,034 1,855,182
Other properties and equipment 41,403 41,860
2,118,437 1,897,042
Less accumulated depreciation 952,516 898,631
Net properties and equipment 1,165,921 998,411
Goodwill 328,754 328,754
Other assets 113,966 101,902
Total assets $ 1,849,578 1,669,370
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 60,968 61,809
Accrued property and liability losses 0,648 9,737
income taxes 1,650 2,144
Total current liabitities 72,266 73,690
Long-term debt 139,000 54,000
Deferred income taxes 199,543 173,422
Accrued property and liability losses 34,148 34,025
Other liabilities and deferred credits 53,226 48,415
Stockholders’ equity 1,351,395 1,285,818
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 1,849,578 1,669,370

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.




TIDEWATER INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS

Years Ended March 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001
(In thousands, except share and per share data)

2003 2002 2001
Revenues:
Vessel revenues $ 624,555 715,361 583,831
Other marine revenues 11,268 13,668 32,748
635,823 729,029 616,679
Costs and expenses:
Vessel operating costs 363,162 382,934 364,184
Costs of other marine revenues 6,649 9,174 25,096
Depreciation and amortization 83,153 78,132 79,527
General and administrative 65,406 66,851 65,505
518,370 537,091 534,312
117,453 191,938 82,367
Other income (expenses):
Foreign exchange gain (loss) (2,896) (843) 297
Gain on sales of assets 6,162 6,380 22,750
Equity in net earnings of unconsolidated companies 5,689 4,977 6,994
Minority interests (78) (199) 127
Interest and miscellaneous income 1,792 3,331 16,080
Interest and other debt costs (412) (833) (1,195)
10,257 12,813 45,053
Earnings before income taxes 127,710 204,751 127,420
Income taxes 39,080 68,592 41,277
Net earnings $ 88,630 136,159 86,143
Earnings per common share $ 1.57 243 1.55
Diluted earnings per common share $ 1.57 2.41 1.53
Weighted average common shares outstanding 56,413,856 56,054,797 55,741,624
Incremental commaon shares from stock options 188,774 333,537 525,735
Adjusted weighted average common shares 56,602,630 56,388,334 56,267,359
Cash dividends declared per common share $ .60 .60 .60

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.



TIDEWATER INC.
CONSOCLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Years Ended March 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001

{In thousands)
Grantor
Deferred Accumulated  Trust Stock
Additional compensation- Other Ownership
Common paid-in Retained restricted Comprehensive  Program
stock capital eamings stock Income (GSOP) Total

Balance at March 31, 2000 $ 6,056 293,617 932,008 (2,287) (9,904) (105,289) 1,114,201
Net eamings — — 86,143 —_ - — 86,143
Currency translation adjustments ~ — - — - — - -
Unrealized losses on available-for-

sale securifies — — — — (147) — (147)
Supplemental Executive Retire-

ment Plan minimum liability - —_— - - (877) — (877)

Comprehensive income 85,119
Issuance of resfricted stock - 2) - — - 138 136
Exercise of stock cptions (1) 2,019 - - — 7,683 9,701
Cash dividends declared - — (33,481) — -— - (33,481)
Issuance of common shares — 682 - —_ - 850 1,532
Other - 2 —_ 1,130 - - 1,132
Balance at March 31, 2001 $ 6,055 296,318 984,670 (1,157) (10,928) (96,618) 1,178,340
Net eamings — — 136,159 — — — 136,159
Currency translation adjustments - —_ —_ — 2 — 2
Unrealized losses on available-for-

sale securities — —_ - - (366) — (366)
Supplemental Executive Retire-

ment Plan minimum liability — —_ — — (269) — (269)

Comprehensive income 135,526
Issuance of restricted stock 4 1,589 —_ (1,593) — —_ —_
Exercise of stock options -— 407 — — — 2,079 2,486
Cash dividends declared ~— — (33,656) -— — -— (33,656)
Issuance of common shares — 1,120 — — — 1,077 2,197
Other (1) (231) — 1,157 — — 925
Balance at March 31, 2002 $ 6,058 299,203 1,087,173 (1,593) (11,561) (93,462) 1,285,818
Net eamings - —_ 88,630 — — - 88,630
Curmrency translation adjustments - - - —_ 1 - 1
Unrealized gains on available-for-

sale securities — — — - (337) — (337)
Supplemental Executive Retire-

ment Plan minimum liability — -— — — (585) — (585)

Comprehensive income 87.709
Issuance of restricted stock — (55) — —_ — - (55)
Exercise of stock options - 1,588 — — — 7,951 9,539
Cash dividends declared - (33,880) — - - (33,880)
Issuance of common shares — 804 — — - 1,014 1,818
Other — - — 446 — — 446
Balance at March 31, 2003 $ 6,058 301,540 1,141,923 (1,147) (12,482) (84,497) 1,351,395

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.




TIDEWATER INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended March 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001
(In thousands)

2003 2002 2001
Operating activities:
Net earnings $ 88,630 136,159 86,143
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 83,153 78,132 79,527
Provision for deferred income taxes 6,123 12,422 8,934
Gain on sales of assets (6,162) (6,380) (22,750)
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated companies, less dividends 1,618 2,598 (2,408)
Minority interests, less dividends (224) 65 (322)
Compensation expense - restricted stock 446 1,157 1,130
Tax benefit on stock compensation 1,089 407 2,261
Changes in assets and liabilities, net:
Trade and other receivables 22,058 (23,588)  (9,085)
Marine operating supplies (3,208) 527 (3,175)
Other current assets 361 93 (1,739)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (565) (6,019) 14,093
Accrued property and liability losses (328) 2,823 2,710
Other, net 8,897 (4,083) (2,142)
Net cash provided by operating activities 202,000 184,313 153,177
Investing activities:
Proceeds from sales of assets 13,689 17,496 46,578
Additions tc properties and equipment (268,620)  (317,907) (302,793)
Other - 195 (2,680)
Net cash used in investing activities (255,931) (300,216) (258,895)
Financing activities:
Principal payments on debt (25,000) (20,000) -
Debt borrowings 110,000 74,000 -—
Proceeds from issuance of common stock 8,695 2,287 7,442
Cash dividends (33,880) (33,656) (33,481)
Other 1 i -
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 59,816 22,632  (26,039)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 5,885 (83,271) (131,757)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 11,882 95,153 226,910
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 17,767 11,882 95,153
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash paid during the year for:
Interest $ 3,156 1,479 1,049
Income taxes $ 31,983 60,100 23,559

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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TIDEWATER INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001
(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Mature of Operations

The company provides services and equipment to the offshore energy indusiry through the
operation of the world's largest fleet of offshore service vessels. Revenues, net earnings and cash flows
from operations are dependent upon the activity level for the vessel fleet, which is uitimately dependent
upon oil and natural gas prices that, in turn, are determined by the supply/demand relationship for oil and
natural gas.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting standards generally
accepted in the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the reporting pericd. The company evaluates its estimates and
assumptions on an ongoing basis based on a combinaticn of historical information and various other
assumptions that are considered reasonable under the particular circumstances. Actual results may differ
from these estimates under different assumptions.

Principies of Consolidation
The Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of Tidewater Inc. and its subsidiaries.
Significant intercompany balances and transactions are eliminated in consolidation.

Cash Equivalents
The company considers all highly liquid investments with maturities of three months or less when
purchased to be cash equivalents.

Inventories
Inventories, which consist primarily of operating parts and supplies for the company’s vessels, are
stated at the lower of weighted-average cost or market.

Properties and Eguipment

Properties and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation for financial reporting purposes is
computed primarily on the straight-line basis beginning with the date of construction, with salvage values
of 5%-10% for marine equipment, using estimated useful lives of:

Years
Marine equipment (from date of construction) 15-25
Other properties and equipment 3-30

Used equipment is depreciated in accordance with the above schedule; however, no life less than
six years is used for marine equipment regardless of the date constructed.

Maintenance and repairs are charged to operations as incurred during the asset's original
estimated useful life {its original depreciable life). Major repair costs incurred after the original estimated
depreciable life that also have the effect of extending the useful life of the asset are capitalized and
amortized over 30 months. Major modifications to equipment are capitalized and amortized over the
remaining life of the equipment. The company schedules vessel drydockings when it is anticipated that
the work can be performed. The company’s net earnings can fluctuate quarter to quarter due to the
timing of scheduled drydockings.
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Goodwill
The company follows SFAS No. 142, “Coodwill and Other intangible Assets,” which requires

goodwill to be tested annually for impairment using a fair value-based approach and does not permit
amortization of goodwill as previously required by Accounting Principles Board {(APB) Opinion No. 17,
“Intangible Assets.” An impairment loss would be recorded if the recorded goodwill exceeds its implied
fair value. Goodwill primarily relates to the fiscal 1998 acquisition of O.1.L. Ltd., a British company. At
iiarch 31, 2003, the company’s goodwill represented 18% of total assets and 24% of stockholders’
equity. As the company adopted SFAS No. 142 as of April 1, 2001, goodwill amortization ceased at that
time. The company amortized goodwill during fiscal 2001, as previously required by APB Opinion No. 17.
Amortization expense in the amount of $9.2 million, or $.11 per share after tax, for fiscal 2001 was based
on a 40-year amortization period.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

Effective April 1, 2002 the company adopted SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or
Disposal of Long-Lived Assets” which established one accounting model to be used for long-lived assets
to be disposed of by sale and broadens the presentation of discontinued operations to include more
disposal transactions. SFAS No. 144 supersedes SFAS No. 121, “Accounting for the Impairment of
Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed Of and the accounting and reporting provisions of APB Opinion
No. 30. The company reviews long-lived assets for impairment whenever events occur or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of assets may not be recoverable. In such evaluation,
the estimated future undiscounted cash flows generated by the asset are compared with the amount
recorded for the asset to determine if a write-down may be required. The company estimates cash flow
based upon historical data adjusted for the company’s best estimate of future market performance that is
based on industry trends. if impairment exists, the carrying value of the long-lived asset is reduced to the
estimated fair value of the asset, based upon its estimated future discounted cash flows. Although the
company believes its assumptions and estimates are reasonable, deviations from the assumptions and
estimates could produce a materially different result.

Accrued Property and Liability Losses

The company's insurance subsidiary establishes case based reserves for estimates of reported
losses on direct business written, estimates received from ceding reinsurers, and reserves based on past
experience of unreported losses. Such losses principally relate to the company's marine operations and
are included as a component of costs of marine operations in the Consolidated Statements of Earnings.
The liability for such losses and the related reimbursement receivable from reinsurance companies are
classified in the Consolidated Balance Sheet into current and noncurrent amounts based upon estimates
of when the liabilities will be settled and when the receivables will be collected.

Pension and Cther Postretirement Benefits

Pension costs are accounted for in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 87 and are funded
to at least meet the minimum funding requirements as required by law. Prior service costs are amortized
on the straight-line basis over the average remaining service period of employees expected to receive
pension benefits. Postretirement benefits other than pensions are accounted for in accordance with
SFAS No. 106. The estimated cost of postretirement benefits other than pensicns are accrued during the
employees' active service period.

The company follows the disclosure provisions of SFAS No. 132, "Employers’ Disclosures about
Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits,” which standardizes the disclosures for pensions and other
postretirement benefit plans.

Income Taxes :

Income taxes are accounted for in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 109. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between
the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable
income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The
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effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period
that includes the enaciment date.

Revenue Recognition

The company’s primary source of revenue is derived from time charter contracts of its vessels on a
rate per day of service basis; therefore, marine vessel revenues are recognized on a daily basis
throughout the contract period. These time charter coniracis are generally either on a term basis
(average three months tc two vears) or on a “spot’ basis. The base rate of hire for a term contract is
generally a fixed rate, provided, however, that term contracts often include escalation clauses to recover
specific additional costs. A spot contract is a short-term agreement to provide offshore marine services to
a customer for a specific short-term job. Spot contract terms generally range from one day to one week.
Marine vessel revenues are recognized on a daily basis throughout the contract period.

Foreign Currency Transiation

The U.S. dollar is the functional currency for ali of the company’s existing international operations,
as transactions in these operations are predominately denominated in U.S. dollars. Foreign currency
exchange gains and lesses are included in the Consolidated Statements of Earnings.

Earnings Per Share

Earnings per share are computed in accordance with SFAS No. 128, "Earnings Per Share,” which
requires the reporting of both earnings per share and diluted earnings per share. The calculation of
earnings per share is based on the weighted average number of shares outstanding and therefore
excludes any dilutive effect of stock options, while diluted earnings per share includes the dilutive effect of
stock options. Per share amounts disclosed in these Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are on a
diluted basis.

Concentrations of Credit Risk :

Financial instruments that potentially subject the ccmpany to concentrations of credit risk consist
principally of {rade and other receivables. These receivables are with a variety of domestic, international
and national energy companies and also include reinsurance companies for recoverable insurance
losses. The company manages its exposure to risk through ongoing credit evaluations of its customers
and generally does not require collateral. The company maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts for
potential losses and does not believe it is generally exposed o concentrations of credit risk that are likely
to have a material adverse impact on the company’s financial position or results of operations.

Stock-Based Compensation

The company measures compensation expense for its stock-based compensation plan using the
intrinsic value recognition and measurement principles prescribed by APB No. 25, "Accounting for Stock
Issued to Employees" and related interpretations. The plan is described in Note 7 of Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements. The company uses the disclosure provision of SFAS No. 148,
"Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation — Transition and Disclosure,” which amended the disclosure
provision of SFAS No. 123. The following table illustrates the effect on net earnings and earnings per
share had the company determined compensation cost based on the fair value at the grant date for its
stock options under SFAS No. 123, "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation.”

(In thousands) 2003 2002 2001
Net eamings as reported $ 88,630 136,159 86,143
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation expense

determined under the fair value method for all awards, net of tax (7,093) (6,746) (7,911)
Pro forma net eamings $ 81,537 129,413 78,232
Eamings per common share:

As reported $ 1.57 2.43 1.55

Pro forma $ 1.45 2.31 1.40
Dituted eamings per common share:

As reported 5 1.57 2.41 1.53

Pro forma $ 1.44 2.30 1.39
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Comprehensive Income

The Company uses SFAS No. 130, "Reporting Comprehensive Income,” which requires the
reporting and display of total comprehensive income and its components in the financial statements.
Total comprehensive income represenis the net change in stockholders’ equity during a period from
sources other than transactions with stockholders and as such, includes net earnings. For the company,
accumulated other comprehensive income is comprised of the net after-tax effect of accumuiated foreign
currency translation adjustments, unrealized gains and losses on available-for-sale securities and
derivative financial instruments, and a minimum pension liability for the company’s Supplemental
Executive Retirement Plan.

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

The company uses SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,”
as amended. The company utilizes derivative financia! instruments to hedge against foreign currency
denominated assets and liabilities and currency commitments. These transactions are forward currency
contracts that are entered into with major financial institutions. Derivative financial instruments are
intended tc reduce the company’s exposure to foreign currency exchange risk. The company accounts
for changes in the fair value of a derivative instrument depending on the intended use of the derivative
and the resulting designation, which is established at the inception of a derivative. SFAS No. 133
requires that a company formally document, at the inception of a hedge, the hedging relationship and the
entity’s risk management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge, including identification of the
hedging instrument, the hedged item or transaction, the nature of the risk being hedged, the method used
to assess effectiveness and the method that will be used to measure hedge ineffectiveness of derivative
instruments that receive hedge accounting treatment. For derivative instruments designated as foreign
currency hedges, changes in fair value, to the extent the hedge is effective, are recognized in other
comprehensive income until the hedged item is recognized in earnings. Hedge effectiveness is assessed
quarterly based on the total change in the derivative’s fair value.

Reclassifications
Certain previousiy reported amounts have been reclassified to conform to the 2003 presentation.

New Accounting Pronocuncements

in April 2002, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 145, "Rescission of FASB Statements No. 4, 44, and 64, Amendment
of FASB Statement No. 13, and Technical Correcticns,” which supersedes previous guidance for
reporting gains and losses from extinguishment of debt and accounting for leases, among other things.
The portion of the statement relating to the rescission of SFAS No. 4, "Reporting Gains and Losses from
Extinguishment of Debt" requires that any gain or loss on extinguishment of debt that was classified as an
extraordinary item that does not meet the unusual in nature and infrequent of occurrence criteria in
Accounting Principal Board (APB) Opinion No. 30, "Reporting the Results of Operations—Reporting the
Effects of Disposal of a Segment of a Business, and Extraordinary, Unusual and Infrequently Occurring
Events and Transactions" shall be reclassified. There was no impact to the company’s financial condition
or results of operations with the adoption of SFAS No. 145.

In June 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146, “Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or
Disposal Activities” which requires that liabilities for costs associated with exit or disposal activities
initiated after December 31, 2002 be recognized when incurred, rather than at the date of a commitment
to an exit or disposal plan. There was no impact to the company’s financial statements with the adoption
of SFAS No. 146.

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148, "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation —
Transition and Disclosure,” which amends SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,”
to provide alternative methods of transition to the fair value method of accounting for stock-based
employee compensation, and also amends the disclosure provision of SFAS No. 123 to require
disclosure in the summary of significant accounting policies the effects of an entity’s accounting policy
with respect to stock-based employee compensation on reported net income and earnings per share in
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annual and interim financial statements. The disclosure provision is required for all companies with stock-
based employee compensation, regardless of whether the company utilizes the fair method of accounting
described in SFAS No. 123 or the intrinsic value method described in APB Opinion No. 25, "Accounting
for Stock Issued to Employees.” SFAS No. 148’s amendment of the transition and annual disclosure
provisions of SFAS No. 123 are effective for fiscal years ending after December 15, 2002. The disclosure
requirements for interim financial statements containing condensed consolidated financial statements are
effective for interim periods beginning after December 15, 2002. The company continues to use the
intrinsic value method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation described by APB Opinion
No. 25; therefore, the alternate methods of fransition do not apply. The company has adopted the
SFAS No. 148 disclosure requirement.

{2) Investment in Unconsolidated Companies

Investments in unconsolidated affiliates, generally 50% or less owned partnerships and
corporations, are accounted for by the equity method. Under the equity method, the assets and liabilities
of the unconsolidated joint venture companies are not consolidated in the company's consolidated
balance sheet.

Investments in, at equity, and advances to unconsolidated marine joint-venture companies at
March 31 were as follows:

Percentage (In thousands})
ownership 2003 2002
Sonatide Marine Ltd. (Luanda, Angola) 49% $25,159 11,437
Others 20%-50% 2,286 2,285
$27,445 13,722

During fiscal 2003 the company sold one deepwater platform supply vessel and one crewboat to
Sonatide Marine Lid. for $18.8 million. The company financed the $16 million sale of the deepwater
vessel, while the joint venture paid $2.8 million cash for the crewboat. The transactions resulted in a
fiscal 2003 gain on sales of assets of $1.1 million and increased the investments in, at equity, and
advances to unconsolidated companies’ account by $14.9 million. During fiscal 2001, the company sold
four vessels (two offshore tugs and two crewboats) to the same joint venture for $17 million, of which the
company financed $¢ million. As of March 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, $12.9 miliion, $2.6 million and
$8.7 million, respectively, was owed the company related to these financings.

During fiscal 2001, the company sold its 40% holding in its unconsolidated marine joint venture,
National Marine Service (NMS), for approximately $31 million resulting in a $16.8 million gain. The after-
tax effect of the gain on the sale was $10.9 million, or $0.19 per share.

(3) Income Taxes

Earnings before income taxes derived from United States and international operations for the years
ended March 31 are as follows:
(In thousands)

2003 2002 2001
United States $ (20,648) 49,673 34,504
Intemational 148,358 155,078 92,916
$ 127,710 204,751 127,420
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Income tax expense for the years ended March 31 consists of the following:

(In thousands)

U.S.

Federal State International Total
2003
Current $ 2,006 1,422 30,188 33,616
Deferred 9,231 —_ (3,767) 5,464

$ 11,237 1,422 26,421 39,080
2002
Current $ 22,002 1,487 25,870 49,359
Deferred 21,678 — (2,445) 19,233

$ 43,680 1,487 23,425 68,592
2001
Current $ 9,566 1,364 21,413 32,343
Deferred 14,033 — (5,099) 8,934

$ 23,598 1,364 16,314 41,277

The actual income tax expense for the years ended March 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001 differs from
the amounts computed by applying the U.S. federal tax rate of 35% to pre-tax earnings as a result of the

following:
(In thousands)

2003 2002 2001
Computed "expected"” tax expense $ 44,698 71,663 44,597
Increase (reduction) resulting from:
Foreign tax credits not previously recognized (3,767) (2,445) (5.099)
Utilization of net operating loss carryforwards (42) (13) —
Expenses which are not deductible for tax purposes 115 79 655
State taxes 924 967 887
Other, net (2,848) (1,659) 237
$ 39,080 68,592 41,277

The company’s fiscal 2003 effective annual tax rate was changed in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2003
from 32.5% to 30.6%. The change was attributable to lower than anticipated pre-tax earnings.

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax
assets and deferred tax liabilities at March 31, 2003 and 2002 are as follows:

(In thousands)

2003 2002
Deferred tax assets:
Financial provisions not deducted for tax purposes $ 18,007 17,261
Foreign net operating loss carryforwards 14,228 14,270
Tax credit carryforwards 29,370 9,813
Other 1,822 1,468
Gross deferred tax assets 63,427 42,812
Less valuation allowance (14,228) (14,270)
Net deferred tax assets 49,199 28,542
Deferred tax liabilities:
Depreciation and amortization (175,617) (154,754)
Other (23,926) (18,668)
Gross deferred tax liabilities (199,543) (173,422)
Net deferred tax liabilities $(150,344) (144,880)

The valuation allowance is primarily the result of a doubt over the ultimate realization of benefits
from certain foreign net operating losses. The remaining balance of the deferred tax assets is expected
to be realized through future operating results, the reversal of taxable temporary differences and tax
planning strategies.
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The company has not recognized a deferred tax liability of approximately $31.5 million for the
undistributed earnings of certain non-U.S. subsidiaries that arose in prior years because the company
currently does not expect those unremitted earnings to reverse and become taxable to the company in
the foreseeable future. A deferred tax liability will be recognized when the company expects that it will
realize those undistributed earnings in a taxable manner, such as through receipt of dividends or sale of
investments. As of March 31, 2003, the undistributed earnings of these subsidiaries were approximately
$90 million.

The company receives a tax benefit that is generated by certain employee stock benefit plan
transactions. This benefit is recorded directly to additional paid-in-capital and does not reduce the
company’s effective income tax rate. The tax benefit for the years ended March 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001
totaled approximately $1.1 million, $484,000 and $2.3 million, respectively.

(4) Long-Term Debt

At March 31, 2003 the company has a $200 million revolving credit facility with a group of banks
and at that date there was $139 million of borrowings outstanding under the facility. Borrowings bear
interest, at the company’s option, at prime or Federal Funds rates plus .5% or Eurodollar rates plus
margins from .5% to .75% based on the company’s funded debt to total capitalization ratio. The revolving
credit commitment expires on April 30, 2004, at which time the then outstanding balance will convert to a
term loan payable in eight quarterly installments beginning July 31, 2004. All of the borrowings under the
agreement are unsecured and the company pays an annual fee of .225% on the unused portion of the
facility. During fiscal 2003 and 2002, the company capitalized approximately $2.8 million and $1 million,
respectively, of interest costs. The company did not capitalize any interest costs during fiscal 2001.

Under the terms of the agreement, the company has agreed to limitations on future levels of
investments and aggregate indebtedness, and maintenance of certain debt to capitalization ratios and
also debt to earnings ratios. The agreement also limits the company’s ability to encumber its assets for
the benefit of others.

(5) Benefit Plans

Upon meeting various citizenship, age and service requiremenis, employees are eligible to
participate in a defined contribution savings plan and can confribute from 2% to 50% of their base salary
to an employee benefit trust. The company matches with company common stock 50% of the
employee’s contribution to the plan up to a maximum of 6% of the employee’s base salary. The plan held
481,633 shares and 460,862 shares of the company's common stock at March 31, 2003 and 2002,
respectively. Amounts charged to expense for the plan for 2003, 2002 and 2001 were $1.7 million,
$1.6 million and $1.8 million, respectively.

A defined benefits pension plan covers certain U.S. citizen employees and employees who are
permanent residents of the United States. Benefits are based on years of service and employee
compensation. Approximately 80% of the pension plan assets are invested in fixed income securities
with the balance invested in equity securities and cash and cash equivalents. The plan does not invest in
Tidewater stock. The company’s policy is to fund the plan based upon minimum funding requirements of
the Employee Retirement income Security Act of 1974. Certain benefits programs are maintained in
several other countries that provide retirement income for covered employees.

The company also has a supplemental retirement plan (supplemental plan) that provides pension
benefits to certain employees in excess of those allowed under the company's tax-qualified pension plan.
Assets of this non-contributory defined benefit plan are held in a Rabbi Trust, which consists of a variety
of marketable securities, none of which is Tidewater stock. The Trust assets, which are included in “other
assets” in the company’s Consolidated Balance Sheet, are recorded at fair value with unrealized gains or
losses included in other comprehensive income. Trust assets at March 31, 2003 and 2002 were
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$7.3 million and $7.6 million, respectively, and the company’s obligation under the supplemental plan,
which is included in “other liabilities and deferred credits” on the Consolidated Balance Sheet, amounted
to $10.6 million and $3.2 miilion, respectively, at March 31, 2003 and 2002.

Qualified retired employees currently are covered by a program, which provides limited health care
and life insurance benefits. Costs of the program are based on actuarially determined amounts and are
accrued over the period from the date of hire to the full eligibility date of employees who are expected to
qualify for these benefits. This plan is not funded.

Changes in plan assets and obligations during the years ended March 31, 2003 and 2002 and the
funded status of the U.S. defined benefits pension plan and the supplemental plan (referred to collectively
as "Pension Benefits") and the postretirement health care and life insurance plan (referred to as "Other
Benefits") at March 31, 2003 and 2002 were as follows:

(In thousands)

Pension Benefits Other Benefits
2003 2002 2003 2002
Change in benefit obligation
Benefit obligation at beginning of year $ 45,162 39,437 25,185 15,775
Service cost 707 816 1,325 980
Interest cost 3,269 2,929 1,791 1,387
Participant contributions - — 309 334
Pian amendments - 30 — —
Benefits paid (1,997) {(1,506) (824) (1,196)
Actuarial (gain) loss 3,078 3,456 9,804 7,905
Benefit obligation at end of year $ 50,219 45,162 37,590 25,185
Change in plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year $ 35,528 32,726 — -
Actual retum 2,064 3,854 — -
Employer contributions 830 454 515 862
Participant contributions — — 309 334
Benefits paid (1,997) (1,506) (824) (1,196)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year $ 36,425 35,528 — —_
Funded (unfunded) status (13,795) (9,634) (37,590) (25,185)
Unrecognized actuanal (gain) loss 6,298 3,042 13,551 3,868
Unrecognized prior service cost 354 461 57 5)
Net accrued benefit cost $ (7,143) (6,131) (23,982) (21,322)
Net accrued benefit cost consists of:
Prepaid benefit cost $§ 696 1,248 — —
Accrued benefit liability (10,501) (9,142) (23,982) (21,322)
Accumulated other comprehensive income 2,662 1,763 — -
Net accrued benefit cost $ (7,143) (6,131) (23,982) (21,322)

For pension plans with benefit obligations in excess of plan assets, the projected benefit obligation
at March 31, 2003 and 2002 was $12.3 million and $11.3 million, respectively. The accumulated benefit
obligation for pension plans with benefit obligations in excess of plan assets was $10.5 million and
$9.1 million at March 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Net periodic pension cost for the U.S. defined benefit pension plan and the supplemental plan for
2003, 2002 and 2001 include the following components:

(In thousands)

2003 2002 2001
Service cost $ 707 816 890
Interest cost 3,269 2,929 2,616
Expected retum on plan assets (2,882) (2,653) (2,900)
Amortization of prior service cost 108 126 126
Recognized actuarial (gain) loss 641 413 312
Net periodic pension cost $ 1,843 1,631 1,044




Net periodic postretirement health care and life insurance
the following components:

costs for 2003, 2002 and 2001 include

{In thousands)

2003 2002 2001
Service cost $ 1,325 980 848
Interest cost 1,791 1,387 979
Other amortization and deferral 59 (62) (409)
Net periodic postretirement benefit cost $ 3,175 2,305 1,418
Assumptions used in actuarial calculations were as follows:
2003 2002 2001
Discount rate 6.8% 7.3% 7.5%
Expected long-term rate of retum on assets 8.3% 8.3% 8.3%
Rates of annual increase in compensation levels 4.0% 4.0% 4.0%

The assumed health care cost trend rate used in measuring the accumulated postretirement benefit
obligation will be 11% in 2003, gradually declining to 5% in the year 2009 and thereafter. A 1% increase
in the assumed health care cost trend rates for each year would increase the accumulated postretirement
benefit obligation by approximately $6.3 million at March 31, 2003 and increase the cost for the year
ended March 31, 2003 by $.6 million. A 1% decrease in the assumed health care cost trend rates for
each year would decrease the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation by approximately
$5.1 million at March 31, 2003 and decrease the cost for the year ended March 31, 2003 by $.4 million.

A defined contribution retirement plan covers all eligible U.S. fleet personnel, along with all new
eligible employees of the company hired after December 31, 1895. This plan is noncontributory by the
employee, but the company has confributed in cash 3% of an eligible employee’s compensation to an
employee benefit trust. The cost of the plan for fiscal 2003, 2002 and 2001 was $1.9 million, $2.2 million,
and $2.3 million, respectively. Forfeitures totaling approximately $.2 million and $.6 million reduced the
costs of the plan for fiscal 2003 and 2002, respectively.

{8) Other Assets, Other Liabilities and Deferred Credits and Accumulated Other Comprehensive
income

A summary of other assets at March 31 follows:
(In thousands)

2003 2002

Recoverable insurance losses $ 34,148 34,250
Assets held for sale 15,514 20,148
Deferred income tax assets 49,199 28,542
Other 15,105 18,962
$ 113,966 101,902

A summary of other liabilities and deferred credits at March 31 follows:
(in thousands)

2003 2002

Postretirement benefits liability $ 23,982 21,322
Pension liability 7,143 6,131
Minority interests in net assets of subsidiaries 1,295 1,518
Deferred vessel revenues 6,944 5,993
Other 13,862 13,451
$ 53,226 48,415
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A summary of accumulated other comprehensive income at March 31 follows:

{In thousands)
2003 2002
Currency translation adjustments $ 10,578 10,578
Unrealized gains on available-for-sale securities 174 (163)
Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan minimum liability 1,730 1,146
$ 12,482 11,561

(7) Capital Stock

The company has 125 milion shares of $.10 par value common stock authorized. At
March 31, 2003 and 2002, 60,578,927 shares and 60,580,671 shares, respectively, were issued. At
March 31, 2003 and 2002, 3,941,578 and 4,359,728 shares, respectively, were held by the Grantor Trust
Stock Ownership Program, which are not included in common shares outstanding for earnings per share
calculations. At March 31, 2003 and 2002, three million shares of no par value preferred stock were
authorized and unissued.

Under the company's stock option and restricted stock plans, the Compensation Committee of the
Board of Directors has authority to grant stock options and restricted shares of the company's stock to
officers and other key employees. At March 31, 2003, 6,124,111 shares of common stock are reserved
for issuance under the plans of which 1,790,524 shares are available for future grants. Stock options are
granted with an exercise price equal to the stock’s fair market value at the date of grant. All outstanding
stock options have ten-year terms and most of the outstanding options vest and become exercisable in
equal installments over a three-year period from the grant date.

The per share weighted-average fair values of stock options granted during fiscal years 2003, 2002
and 2001 were $10.51, $16.33 and $18.60, respectively, on the dates of grant using the Black Scholes
option-pricing model with the following weighted-average assumptions:

2003 2002 2001
Risk-free interest rate 3.00% 5.00% 4.70%
Expected dividend yield 2.00% 1.40% 1.20%
Expected stock price volatility 47.19% 48.87% 48.43%
Expected stock option life 5 years 5 years 5 years

The company applies the intrinsic value recognition and measurement principles prescribed by APB
Opinion No. 25 in accounting for its plans and, accordingly, no compensation cost has been recognized
for its stock options in the consolidated financial statements. The effect on the company's net earnings
had the company determined compensation cost based on the fair value at the grant date for its stock
options under SFAS No. 123 is disclosed in Note 1 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Stock option activity during 2003, 2002 and 2001 was as follows:

Weighted-average Number

Exercise Price of Shares

Balance at March 31, 2000 $ 33.17 3,560,307
Granted 42.68 616,000
Exercised 22.79 (358,397)
Expired or cancelled 35.00 (264,169)
Balance at March 31, 2001 35.73 3,553,741
Granted 37.49 844,500
Exercised 25.18 (96,786)
Expired or cancelled 26.50 (71,334)
Balance at March 31, 2002 36.23 4,230,121
Granted 27.85 627,500
Exercised 23.54 (370,470)
Expired or cancelled 40.90 (156,669)
Balance at March 31, 2003 $ 35.93 4,330,482
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The 4,330,482 options outstanding at March 31, 2003 fall into three general exercise-price ranges
as follows:

Exercise Price Range

$19.00 - $29.44 $32.25 - $40.28 $42.19-$59.00
Options outstanding at March 31, 2003 1,507,789 1,358,360 1,464,333
Weighted average exercise price $25.53 $36.42 $46.20
Weighted average remaining contractual life 7.6 years 7.4 years 5.8 years
Options exercisable at March 31, 2003 869,455 942,674 1,280,156
Weighted average exercise price of options exercisable
at March 31, 2003 $23.76 $35.18 $46.71

At March 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001, the number of options exercisable under the stock option plans
was 3,092,285, 3,034,432 and 2,411,216, respectively, and the weighted average exercise price of those
options was $36.74, $35.35 and $36.38, respectively.

A total of 78,448 shares of restricted common stock of the company were granted to certain key
employees during fiscal years 1998 through 2003 from the company’s Employee Restricted Stock Plan.
These restricted shares vest and become freely transferable over a four-year period provided the
employee remains employed by the company during the vesting period. During the restricted period, the
restricted shares may not be transferred or encumbered, but the recipient has the right to vote and
receive dividends on the restricted shares. The fair market value of the stock at the time of the grants
totaled approximately $3.3 million and was classified in stockholders’ equity as deferred compensation —
restricted stock. The deferred amount is being amortized by equal monthly charges to earnings over the
respective four-year vesting periods. The restricted stock plan is the only equity compensation plan that
has not been approved by shareholders.

In accordance with an employment agreement with the company’s chairman of the board entered
into on September 25, 1997, 50,000 shares of restricted common stock were granted on that date. These
restricted shares vest at varying intervals when the average market price of the common stock reaches
certain predetermined levels or upon the chairman reaching age 65. The fair market value of the stock at
the time of grant totaling approximately $3 million was deferred and has been amortized by equal monthly
charges to earnings over the five years ended March 31, 2002. The chairman reached age 65 in March
2002; therefore, the resftrictions have been lifted from the shares.

On January 28, 1999 the company established a Grantor Trust Stock Ownership Program in
connection with which the company entered into a trust agreement with a bank providing for the
establishment of the related trust (the "trust”). The trust is designed to acquire, hold and distribute shares
of the common stock of the company to provide for the payment of benefits and compensation under the
company's employee benefit plans, including its stock option plans and 401(k) plan. The trust will not
increase or alter the amount of benefits or compensation that will be paid under these plans.

On January 29, 1999 the company sold at market value 5,000,000 shares (the "acquired shares")
of common stock to the trust for $107,187,500, or $21.4375 per share. In payment for the acquired
shares, the trust paid $500,000 in cash and issued a promissory note payabie to the company for the
remaining balance. Acquired shares will be released to satisfy the company's gbligations to pay benefits
under company benefit plans as the promissory note is paid down or forgiven.

For financial reporting purposes the trust is consolidated with the company. Any dividend
transactions between the company and the trust are eliminated. Acquired shares held by the trust remain
valued at the market price at the date of purchase and are shown as a reduction to stockholders' equity in
the company's consolidated balance sheet. The difference between the trust share value and the fair
market value on the date shares are released from the trust is included in additional paid-in capital.
Common stock held in the trust is not considered outstanding in the computation of earnings per share.
The trust held 3,941,578 and 4,359,728 shares of common stock at March 31, 2003 and 2002,
respectively. The trustee wili vote or tender shares held by the trust in accordance with the confidential
instructions of participants in the company's stock option plans and 401(k) plan.
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Under a Shareholder Rights Plan, one preferred stock purchase right has been distributed as a
dividend for each outstanding common share. Each right entitles the holder to purchase, under certain
conditions, one one-hundredth of a share of Series A Participating Preferred Stock at an exercise price of
$160, subject to adjustment. The rights will not be exercisable uniess a person (as defined in the plan)
acquires beneficial ownership of 15% or more of the outstanding common shares, or a person
commences a tender offer or exchange offer, which upon its consummation such person would
beneficially own 15% or more of the outstanding common shares. The Board of Directors is authorized in
certain circumstances to lower the beneficial ownership percentage to not less than 10%.

If after the rights become exercisable a person becomes the beneficial owner of 15% or more of the
outstanding common shares (except pursuant to an offer for all shares approved by the Board of
Directors), each holder (other than the acquirer) will be entitled to receive, upon exercise, common shares
having a market value of twice the exercise price. In addition, if the company is involved in a merger
(other than a merger which follows an offer for all shares approved by the Board of Directors), major sale
of assets or other business combination after a person becomes the beneficial owner of 15% or more of
the outstanding common shares, each holder of a right (other than the acquirer) will be entitled to receive,
upon exercise, common stock of the acquiring company having a market value of twice the exercise
price.

The rights may be redeemed for $.01 per right at any time prior to ten days following the acquisition
by a person of 15% or more of the outstanding common shares. The rights expire on November 1, 2006.

(8) Commitments and Contingencies

Compensation continuation agreements exist with all of the company’s officers whereby each
receives compensation and benefits in the event that their employment is terminated following certain
events relating to a change in control of the company. The maximum amount of cash compensation that
could be paid under the agreements, based on present salary levels, is approximately $12.5 million.

As of March 31, 2003, the company has committed to the construction of 25 vessels at a total cost
of approximately $360.8 million, which includes shipyard commitments and other incidental costs. The
company is committed to the construction of five large anchor handling towing supply vessels, two large
platform supply vessels, 10 platform supply vessels ranging in size from 205-foot to 220-foot, two
162-foot crewboats and three 175-foot fast crewboats. Scheduled delivery for the vessels is expected to
begin in April 2003 with final delivery in August 2004. As of March 31, 2003, $214.1 million has been
expended on these vessels.

While the company has not formally committed to any future new build vessel contracts at the
present time, other than what has been discussed above, the company anticipates over the next several
years continuing ifs vessel building program in order to replace its aging vessels. The majority of the
company’s supply and towing supply vessels were constructed between 1976 and 1983. As such, most
of this vessel class exceeds 20 years of age and will ultimately need to be replaced. In addition to age,
market conditions will alsc help determine when a vessel is no longer economically viable. The company
anticipates using future operating cash flows and borrowing capacities to fund significant capital
expenditures over the next several years.

During the ongoing examinations of the company’s income tax returns covering fiscal years 1999
and 2000, the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) has informed the company that it intends to raise certain
issues concerning the depreciation methods historically utilized by the company and the entire offshore
marine support industry. The IRS position, if ultimately proposed and sustained, could result in additional
income tax due approximating $28.5 million related to fiscal years 1999 and 2000. Additionally, if the IRS
were also to successfully propose a second adjustment covering the cumulative effect of such a
depreciation method change, then a further additional income tax of $25.5 million could also be due
related to fiscal years prior to 19989.
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Such additional taxes due, if any, would result in a reclassification of a previously recorded non-
current deferred income tax liability to a current income tax payable. Other than a charge for interest
related to amounts due, if any, this issue would have no effect on the company’s statement of earnings.
The company intends to vigorously contest any audit deficiency when issued by the IRS and believes that
any final outcome of this coniroversy will not have a material adverse effect on its financial position or
results of operations.

Various legal proceedings and claims are outstanding which arose in the ordinary course of
business. In the opinion of management, the amount of ultimate liability, if any, with respect to these
actions will not have a materially adverse effect on the company's financial position or results of its
ongoing operations.

(9) Financial Instruments

The company's financial instruments consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents, trade
receivables, trade payables and long-term debt whose book values are considered to be representative of
their respective fair values. The company also periodically enters into spot and forward currency
derivative financial instruments as a hedge against foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities
and currency commitments.

Spot contracts are shori-term in nature and settle within two business days. The fair value
approximates the carrying value due to the shori-term nature of this instrument, and as a result, nc gains
or losses are recognized. There were no spot contracts outstanding at March 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001.

Forward currency coniracts are longer-term in nature but generally do not exceed one year. The
company had no derivative financial instrumenis outstanding at March 31, 2003 that qualified as a hedge
instrument. At March 31, 2002 the company had five forward currency derivative contracts outstanding
totaling $11.5 million. The company had one forward contract outstanding totaling $11 million that
qualified as a hedge instrument at March 31, 2001.

{10) Subsequent Event

On April 1, 2003, the company paid $79 million in cash to ENSCO International Incorporated to
purchase its 27-vessel Gulf of Mexico-based marine fleet. The cash sale was funded by a newly-placed
$100 million term loan agreement with a group of banks that expires on July 31, 2004. The loan bears
interest, at the company’s option, at prime or Federal Funds rates plus .5% or Eurodollar rates plus
margin of .85%. The mix of vessels the company acquired consists of five anchor handling towing supply
vessels, six stretched 220-foot platform supply vessels and 16 supply vessels. In conjunction with this
acquisition, it was also agreed that, for a period of two years and subject to satisfactory performance, the
company will provide to ENSCQO all of its discretionary vessel requirements in the Gulf of Mexico. The
day rates to be charged under the arrangement are based upon predetermined pricing criteria.
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(11) Segment and Geographic Distribution of Operations

The company follows SFAS No. 131, "Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related
Information” but operates in only one business segment. The following table provides a comparison of
revenues, operating profit, identifiable assets, and depreciation and amortization and additions to
properties and equipment for the years ended March 31. Vessel revenues and operating costs relate to
vessels owned and operated by the company while other marine services reiate to the activities of the
company's shipyards, brokered vessels and other miscellaneous marine-related businesses.

(in thousands)

2003 2002 2001
Marine revenues (A):
Vessel revenues:
United States $ 103,368 203,648 197,660
Intemational (B) 521,187 511,713 386,271
624,555 715,361 583,931
Other marine services 11,268 13,668 32,748
$ 635823 729,029 616,679
Marine operating profit:
Vessel activity:
United States $ (15380) 56,128 26,812
Intemational 138,945 145,412 65,241
123,565 201,540 92,053
Gains on sales of assets 6,162 6,380 22,750
Other marine services 4,168 4,042 7,137
133,895 211,962 121,940
Other income 6,343 6,313 19,701
Comorate expenses (12,116) (12,691) (13,026)
Interest and other debt costs (412) (833) (1,195)
Eamings before income taxes $ 127,710 204,751 127,420
Identifiable assets:
Marine:
United States $ 477,490 370,192 292,952
Intemational (B) 1,254,189 1,216,724 1,047,283
1,731,679 1,586,916 1,340,235
Investments in and advances to unconsolidated Marine companies 27,445 13,722 16,544
1,759,124 1,600,638 1,356,779
General corporate 90,454 68,732 148,713

$ 1,849,578 1,669,370 1,505,492

Depreciation and amortization:

Marine equipment depreciation $ 82,414 77,350 69,596
General corporate depreciation 739 782 761
Goodwill amortization — - 9,170

$ 83,153 78,132 79,527

Additions to properties and equipment:

Marine equipment operations $ 269,554 317,790 302,706
General corporate 66 117 87

$ 269,620 317,907 302,793

(A) One customer accounted for 13%, 12% and 11% of revenues for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

(B) Marine support services are conducted worldwide with assets that are highly mobile. Revenues are principally derived from offshore
service vessels, which regularly and routinely move from one operating area to ancther, often to and from offshore operating areas in
different continents. Because of this asset mobility, revenues and long-ived assets attributable to the company’s intemational marine
operations in any one country are not "material” as that term is defined by SFAS No. 131. Equity in net assets of non-U.S. subsidiaries is
$876.7 miilion, $87C.5 million, and $798.5 million at March 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Other intemational identifiable assets
include accounts receivable and other balances denominated in currencies other than the U.S. dollar, which aggregate approximately
$8.0 million, $12.0 million, and $5.5 million at March 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001, respectively. These amounts are subject to the usual risks
of fluctuating exchange rates and govemment-imposed exchange controls.

F-20



(12) Supplementary Information--Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

Years Ended March 31, 2003 and 2002
(In thousands, except per share data)

2003 First Second Third Fourth

Marine revenues $ 160,310 158,553 163,087 153,873
Marine operating profit $ 35,989 35,808 36,498 25,600
Net eamings $ 23,043 23,361 23,637 18,589
Eamings per share $ 41 41 42 .33
Diluted eamings per share $ 41 41 A2 .33
2002 First Second Third Fourth

Marine revenues $ 190,563 187,263 181,828 169,375
Marine operating profit $ 60,357 55,054 51,102 45,449
Net earmnings $ 39,031 35,329 33,542 28,257
Eamings per share $ .70 .63 .60 .50
Diluted eamings per share $ .89 .63 .60 .50

Operating profit consists of revenues less operating costs and expenses, depreciation, general and

administrative expenses and other income and expenses of the Marine division.

See Notes 1, 2 and 3 for detailed information regarding transactions that affect fiscal 2003 and

2002 quarterly amounts.

Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.
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SCHEDULE I
TIDEWATER INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Valuation and Qualifying Accounts
Years Ended March 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001
(In thousands)

Column A Column B Column C Column D Column E

Balance
Balance at at

. Beginning Additions End of
Description of period at Cost Deductions Period

2003
Deducted in balance sheet from
trade accounts receivables:
Allowance for doubtful accounts 640 (A)

Amortization of prepaid rent and
debt issuance costs 6,101

2002
Deducted in balance sheet from
trade accounts receivables:
Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 7,981 — 37 (A) 7,944

Amortization of prepaid rent and
debt issuance costs $ 5272 175

2001
Deducted in balance sheet from
trade accounts receivable:
Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 12,331 664 5,014 (A) 7,981

Amortization of prepaid rent and
debt issuance costs $ 5,126 146 --- 5,272

(A) Accounts receivable amounts considered uncollectible and removed from accounts receivable by reducing allowance for doubfful
accounts.
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seated, left to right Dean E. Taylor Robert H. Boh
. Chief Executive Officer and President,  Chairman, Boh Bros. Construction Co.
! Tidewater Inc.

! Donald G. Russell Jon C. Madonna
Chairman, Russell Companies Former Chairman and CEQ, KPMG LLC

: standing, left to right William C. O’'Malley }. Hugh Roff, Jr. Paul W. Murrill

; Chairman of the Board, Tidewater Inc.  Chairman, Roff Resources LLC Professional Engineer
Richard A. Pattarozzi Arthur R. Carlson
Former Vice President, Shell Qil Co. Managing Director, TCW Group Inc.
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seated, left to right Dean E. Taylor B J. Keith Lousteau
« Chief Executive Officer and President . _Chief Financial Officer,

 Executive Vice President and Treasurer
‘Cliffe F. Laborde N -

I

Executive Vice President, ~ Jeffrey M. Platt ™.,
General Counsel and Secretary” - -Vice Presidént "
standing, left to right  William C. O'Malley - - Stephen W. Dick -+~ Joseph M. Bennett
: “Chairman of the Board Executive Vice President Vice President, Controller
. Ca : and Principal Accounting Officer
Reginald A McNee . James H. Donnelly
Vice President Vice President
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Tel: 1.800.678.8433
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